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NOTICE OF MEETING

Notice is herelw given that the Forty Seven Annual General Meeting of the members of Triochem Products Limited
(CINL24299MH1972PLC015544) will be held at the Registered Office of the Company at Sambava Chambers, 4"
Floor, Sir P. M. Road, Mumbai - 400001 on Saturday, 24" August, 2019 at 3.00 P.M, to transact the following

husiness:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the financial vear ended 31" March,
2019 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors’ thercon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ramu 8. Deora (DIN 00312369), who retires by rotation and is
eligible for re-appeintment

3. Ratification of appointment of Auditors
To consider and, if though fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 139 and other applicable provision, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended from
time to time, the Company hereby ratified the appointment of M/s. Kanu Doshi Associates LLP, Chartered
Aceountants, Mumbar (ICAI Firm Registration No.104746W/W100096) as Auditors of the Company to held
office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 48" Annual General
Meeting to be held in 2020 to examine and audit the accounts of the Company for the financial year 2019
- 2020 at such remuneration to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company, based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, mutually agreed to between the Company and Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. Ratification of Remuneration payable to cost auditor
To consider and if though fit, 1o pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
ORDINARY RESOLUTION:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 148 and other applicable provision, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time o
time (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in foree), Mis. N,

sh & Associates, Cost Accountants (the Cost Auditors) appointed by the Board of Directors of the

WW MIDC Industrial Area, Chikhioli, Ambemath {West), Dist, Thane, PIN - 421 505 MAHARASHTRA.
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Company, to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company [or the financial vear ending March 31,
2020, on a remuneration of Rs.25,000~ (Rupees Twenty Five Thousand) plus Goods and Service Tax
{GST) as applicable, be and is hereby ratified.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof)
be and is hereby authorized 10 do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary proper or expedient
to give effect 1o this resolution”,

Appointment of Mr. Rajesh R. Deora (DIN: 00312316) as a Director of the Company.

To consider and if though fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as an
ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr, Rajesh R Deora (DIN: 00312316), who was appointed as an Additional Director
with effect from 28" May, 2019 on the Board of the Company in terms of Section 161 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and any other applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rule, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereol for the time being in foree) and who holds office up 1o the date of this Annual General
Meeting, and in respect of whom a notice has been received from a members in writing under section 160
of the Companies Act, 2013 along with requisite deposit, proposing his candidature for the office of a
Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation, with effect
from the date of this Meeting

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof)
be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary proper or expedient
to give effect 1o this resolution”.

Authorization for Related Party Transaction

To consider and if though fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as a SPECIAL
RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT in continuation of and in addition to the Resolution passed through Special
resolution in Annual General Meeting held on 25" August, 2018 and pursuant to the Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meeting of Board & its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, and such other approvals, sanctions, consents and permissions as
may be deemed necessary consent be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company or
any Committee thereof, Lo enter into contracts | agreements as defined in the Companies Act, 2013 with
the related parties up to maximum per annum amounts with effect from April 1, 2019, as appended

heremn below

Name of Related Partics / Transaction delined u:-._ 188{-11 of Companies Act, 20135
i (Rs. in Crores) |

b



© NOTES:
I

 Name of Related Parties Sale of any goods and | Purchase of any " E Payment of Expenses
Companies materials goorls and materials | and Reimbursement Paid

On Actual basis, Exempted being in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. (Subject
1o a maximum of amount p.a. as mentioned against the name of the Company).

" G Amphray Pharmaceuticals 15 20
Pvt Lid

' Triochem Laboratories Pyt 15 20
Leed

" Ambernath Plasto F'ncknging - ’ = ' =
Pt Lid | |

PROPRIETORSHIP FIRM:
(i Amphray Laboratories 60 | 40 | 10

DIRECTORS/KMPs/RELATIVES OF DIRECTORS & KMPs/OTHER FIRMS & COMPANIES in which Director |
have some interest as per the provisions of section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013

' Mrs. Grace R. Deora - l

Mr. Rajesh R. Deora 5 =

Mr, Rajiv R. Deora .

Ramu M. Deora HUF -

Ramu 8. Deora HUF - - >
Any Contract or transaction with all the above parties for selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any Committee thereof, be and
are hereby authorized to execute the documents, deeds or writings required to be executed in relation to
the and other incidental documents, make applications to regulatory and governmental authorities for the
purpases of obtaining all approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions required by the Company and to

do all acts and deeds to give effect to this resolution.”

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the business
1o be transacted at the Annual General Meeting (AGM), as set out under item no. 4, 5 and 6 above and the
relevant details of the Dircctors seeking re-appointment/appointment under item no. 2 above as required
by Regulation 26(4) and 36(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) and as required
under Secretarial Standards - 2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
Indlia is annexed thereto.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE
“MEETING”) 1S ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF
HIM AND A THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. The proxy form, in order to

be effective, must be received at the Company's Registered Office not less than 48 hours before the



.
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Meeting. Proxies submitted on behall of companies, societies, partnership firms, ete, must be supported
by appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable, issued on behalf of the nominating organization.
Members are requested to note that a person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50
and holding in aggregate not more than 10% ol the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. Il a proxy is proposed (o be appointed by Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital
of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
Members

Hook Closure: The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 16" August, 2019 to Saturday, 24" August, 2019 (both days inclusive),

The Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI') has mandated the transfer of securities to be carried
out only in dematerialized form (except in case of transmission or transposition of securities) effective
from 1% April, 2019. Accordingly, request for physical transfer of securitics of listed entities shall not be
processed [rom 1 April, 2019 onwards. In view of such amendment and in order to eliminate the risk
associated with physical holding of shares. Members who are holding shares in physical form hereby
requested to dematerialize their holding,

Members may avail dematerialization facility by opening Demat Accounts with the Depository Participants
of wither National Securities Depository Limited or Central Depository Services (India) Limited and get
the eqquity share certificate held by them dematerialized. The ISIN No, of the Company is INESS1EC1013
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to advice immediately change in their address, if
any, quoting their folio number(s) to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company. Members
holding shares in the electronic form are requested to advice immediately change in their address, if any,
quoting thewr Client 1D No., to their respective Depository Participants,

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of name
will be entitled to vote.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in physical form can
submit their PAN and email address to the Company / Registrar M/s. Sharex Dynamic (India) Pv. Lid., C-
101, 247 Park, L. B. . Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai: 400083, Phone: 022 28515644 / 5000, Fax: 022

28512885 E-mail: support(@ sharexindia.com

Members proxies attending the Meeting should bring the Anendance Slip, duly filled, for handing over at

thi venue of the meeting

10. A route map showing direction to reach the venue of the 47" Annual General Meeting is given at the end

[ the Notice.



11. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and
until the conclusion of the meeting, @ member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time
during the business hours of the Company, provided that not less than three days of notice in writing is
given to the company,

12. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their sharcholding, maintained under Section
170 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and The Register of Contracts or Arrangements, in which
Dircctors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be available for inspection by the
members at the Annual General Meeting,

15 Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report with them at the Annual General
Meeting, as the copies of the report will not be circulated at the meeting,

14. Members desirous of getting any information in respect of accounts of the Company and proposed
resolution, are requested 1o send their queries in writing to the Company at its registered office at least 7
days before the date of the meeting, so that the required information can be made available at the
meeting,

15. Nomination Facility:

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, facility for making nomination is available
for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members holding shares in single name and who
have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-
14 If a member desire to cancel the earlier nomination and record fresh nomination, he may submit the
same in Form No. SH-14, Both Forms are appended at the ended of the Annual Report. Members holding
shares in physical form are requested to submil the forms to the Company's Share Registrars and Transfer
Agents. Members holding shares in electronic form may obtain form from their respective Depository
Participant.

16. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘Ministry”), Government of India, has taken a “Green Initiative in
Corporate Governance” by allowing paperless compliances by companies through electronic mode. As
per the Circular No. 17/2011, dated 21.04.2011 and Circular No. 18/2011, dated 29.04.2011 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, companies can now send various notice/documents (including notice calling
Annual General Meeting, Audited Financial Statements, Directors Report, Auditors Report, etc,) to their
sharcholders through electronic mode, to the registered email address of the shareholders.

17. Members may also note that an electronic copy of the 47% Annual Report including Notice along with
attendance  slip and proxy form will be awiilable on the Company's website at

www.triochemproducts com Even after registering for e-communication, Members are entitled to receive

such communication in physical form, upon making such a request for the same free of cost, For any




I8,

19.

communication, the shareholders may also send their request to the Company's investor E-mail Id:

investoria/tricchemproducts.com

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of Companies (Management

and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to offer the facility of voting through electronic

means, as an alternate, to all its Members to enable them to cast their votes electronically instead of
casting their vote at the Meeting,

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management

and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Company is pleased to provide its

members the facility of ‘remote e-voting’ (e-voling from a place other than venue of the Annual General

Meeting) to exercise their right to vote at the 47" Annual General Meeting. The business may be

transacted through c-voting services rendered by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL),

The facility for voting, cither through electronic voting system or through ballot/polling paper shall also

be made available at the venue of the 47" Annual General Meeting. The members attending the meeting,

who have not already cast their vote through remote evoting shall be able to exercise their voting rights at
the meeting. The members who have already cast their vote through remote e-voling may attend the
meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again at the Annual General Meeting,

The procedure and Instructions for the voting through electronic means is as follows:

4. The Remote e-voting period begins on 21" August, 2019 at 09:00 a.m. and will end on 23" August,
2019 at 05:00 p.m. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cutoff date 17" August, 2019, may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting after 5.00 pm. on 23"
August, 2019,

Members holding shares in physical or in demat form as on 17" August, 2019 shall only be eligible for
¢-VOling,

b, Sharcholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the

mecling venue,

¢ The shareholders should log on 1o the e-voting website waw. evotingindia.com.
d. Click on "Shareholders”
¢.  Now Enter your User 1D
a For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,
b, For NSDL: 8 Character DI ID [ollowed by 8 Digits Client 1D,
¢. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the

Company,
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Next enter the Image Verilication as displayed and Click on Login.

Il you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on 1o www.evotingindia.com and voted on

an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

If vou are a first time user [ollow the steps given below:

i ' For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

| PAN Enter ;n;ur 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department

(Applicable for both demat sharcholders as well as physical shareholders)

e Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the last 8
digits of the demat account/folio number in the PAN field.

e In case the folio number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0's
before the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters.
Eg If your name is Ramesh Kumar with folio number 100 then enter
RAGOOO0T00 in the PAN field.

' Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd'mmjyyyy format) as
. Bank Details | recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
OR o Ilboth the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter
Date of Birth the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank field as mentioned in
(DOB) instriction (d).

Alter entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note
that this password is 1o be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL
platform. It is strongly recommended not 1o share your password with any other person and take
utmost care 1o keep vour password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voling on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED = on which vou choose to
Yole.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option
YES/NO for voting. Seleet the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent
1o the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent 1o the Resolution.

(lick on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
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Alter selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A conlirmation box
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK”, else 1o change your vote, click on
“CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

You can also take out print of the voting done by vou by clicking on "Click here to print” option on
the Voting page.

If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User 1D and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app m-Voting available for android based
mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. iPhone and Windows phone
users can download app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively on or after
A0 June, 2018, Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your
mobile.

Note for Non - Individual Sharcholders and Custodians.

o Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are

required to log on to www evotingindia com and register themselves as Corporates.

e They should submit a scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the

entity to helpdesk.evoting (@ cdslindia.com

e After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote
on.

»  The list of accounts linked in the login should be emailed to helpdesk evoting (@ edslindia.com
and on approval of the accounts they would be able 1o cast their vote,

o Ascanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the
scrutinizer o verify the same.

In case you have anv queries or issue regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked

Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www evotingindia.com under help section or

write an email to helpdesk evoting@ edslindia.com.

In case of members receiving the physical copy:

4. Please follow all steps from sl, no. (a) to'sl. ne. (s) above 1o cast vote.
b.  The voling period begins on 21" August, 2019 at 09:00 a.m. and will end on 23™ August, 2019 at

05:00 p.m_ During this period sharcholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical

leo



form or in dematerialized {orm, as on the cut-off date 17" August, 2019, may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter,
¢ In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting. you may refer the Frequently Asked

Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www evotingindia.com under help section

or write an email 1o helpdesk evoting(@ edslindia com.

20, The voting right of sharcholders shall be in proportion to their share of the paid up equity share capital of
the Company.

21. E-wvoling period will commence from 21* August, 2019 at 09:00 a.m. and will end on 23™ August, 2019 at
05:00 p.m,

22, Mrs. Ragini Choksht, Practicing Company Sceretary (C.F, No. 1436) has been appointed by the Board of
Director of the Company as Scrutinizer for scrutinize the remote e-voling process as well as voting

Q through Poll paper at the Meeting, in a fair and transparent manner

25, The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding 48 working hours from the conclusion of the e-voting
period unblock the votes in presence of art least two (2) witness not in the employment of the Company
and make a Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any forthwith to the Chairman of
the Company.

24. The Results shall be declared on or after the date of Annual General Meeting of the Company. The Results
declared along with the Scrutinizers Report shall be placed on the Company's website and on the website
of CDSL within two (2) days of passing of the resolutions at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board of Directors

For Triochem Products Limited

o ad r_}____ e

race R Deora Ramu 8, Deora
Director Director & CEO
DIN; 00312080 DIN: 00312369

Mace: Mumbai

Dated; 28" May, 2019

Registered Office:

4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P M. Road, Fort, Mumbai: 400 0401
CIN: L24249MH 19T 2PLCO15544

Email: investoria triochemproducts.com ; Website: www.trinchemproducts.com

Phone No.: 91 22 22663150
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Annexure 1o Notice
PROFILE OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and Seeretarial Standard 2 in respect of the Directors secking appointment | re-

appointment at the Annual General Meeting is furnished below:

. Name (M Director _ Mr. Ramu 8. Deora _ J
| Director Identification Number 00312369 ’
Duslgn;ﬂmn Non-Executive Director
| Age — - 83 Years
 Qualification BA, LLB, -
Expertise Business  strategy  and  Development,  Leadership
development. General management, Finance, Investment.
' Date of first npp:ﬁntmem in the current 30™ June, 1975 -
| designation
Shareholding in the Company as on 31" March, = 34,500
2019
' Dirvcmrshi;_m and Committee mi:n:lberﬁhips Nil h

held in other companies as on 31" March, 2019

{Excluding Private Companices)
Inter-se relationships between Directors and Mrs. Grace R. Deora (DIN 00312080) (Wile)
! Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Rajesh R. Deora (DIN 00312316) (Son)

| No. of Board Meetings attended during the t1ol4
financial year 2018 - 19 |
Terms and conditions of re-appointment As per the resolution passed by the Sharcholders of the |
Company on the 45" Annual General Meeting held on 26"
August, 2016, Mr. Ramu 8. Deora has been appointed as a
Non-Executive Directors, liable to retire by rotation.

' Details of proposed remuneration Nil

The Board of Dicectors proposed the re-appointment of Mr. Ramu S, Deora as Non-Executive Director on the
Board of Directors of the Company and recommends the resolution as set out at ltem no. 2 of the Notice for the
approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

Except Mr. Ramu 8. Deora, Mrs. Grace R. Deora and Mr. Rajesh R. Deora and no other Director or Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the re-appointment of Mr. Ramu S,

Deora as a Non-Executive Director of the Company, expeet to extent of their shareholding, if any. In the Company.

5




Name Of Director

Mr. Rajesh R. Deora

i Director ldentification Number 00312316

| Designation Non-Executive Director

' Age 40 Years

- Qualification Graduate in Economics & Industrial Management and |
Bachelor of Science Degree from Carnegie Mellon University
(USA).

' E.\Pt.'ﬂ-i.ﬁt_ He stared his career with Amphray Laboratories as Export -

Import Manager. He has over 20 years of experience in all
aspect of the Business including Finance & Accounting,
Logistics,  Import-Export,
Development.

Products  and HBusiness

Dhate of first appointment in the current

| designation

28" May, 2019,

Shareholding in the Company as on 31* March,
2019,

36,000

I Directorships and Committee memberships
held in other companies as on 31" March, 2019
(Excluding Private Companies)

Nil

Interse relationships between Directors and
Kev Managerial Personne

Mr. Ramu S. Deora (DIN 00312369) (Father) |

| Mrs. Grace R. Deora (DIN 00312080 (Wife)

No. of Board Meetings attended during the

financial vear 2018 - 19

N.A

Terms and conditions of re-appointment

Appoinied as Additional Director with effect from 28" May,
2019, The appointment is subject to approval of the Members
in ensuing 47" Annual General Meeting will be held on 24™
August, 2019. (Refer item no. 5 of the Notice and Explanatory
Statement).

| Details of proposed remuneration

Nil

The Board of Directors proposed the appoiniment of Mr. Rajesh R. Deora as Non-Executive Director on the Board

of Directors of the Company and recommends the resolution as set out at ltem no. 5 of the Notice and

explanatory statement for the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

Except Mr. Ramu $. Deora. Mrs. Grace R. Deora and Mr. Rajesh R. Deora and no other Director or Key Managerial

Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the appointment of Mr. Rajesh R,

Deora 4s a Non-Executive Non-lndependent Director of the Company, expect to extent of their sharcholding, il

any, in the Company.

1%



Annexure to Notice

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

Pursuant 1o Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the act'), the following Explanatory Statement sets out all
material facts relating to the Business mentioned under Item no. 3, 4, 5 and 6 of the accompanying Notice dated

28" May, 2019,

ltem No.3:

This explanatory statement is provided through strictly not require as per Section 102 of the Act.

M/s. Kanu Doshi Associates LLP (ICAl Firm Registration No. 104746W/W100096), Chartered Accountants, Mumbai
were appointed as the statutory auditors of the Company for a period from live years at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on 26" August, 2017 w hold office from the conclusion of Forty Five tll the
conclusion of Fifty Annual General Meeting to be held in 2022,

As per the provision of Section 139(1) of the Act, their appointment for the above tenure is subject to ratification
by members at every Annual General Meeting,

Accordingly, ratification of the members is being sought for appointment of statutory auditors as per the proposal
contained in the Resolution set out at item no. 3 of the notice.

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution at item no. 3 for approval by the members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or relatives of Directors and KMPs is concerned or

interested in the resolution set out at item no. 3 of the accompanying notice.

ltem No.4:

The Company is directed, under Section 148 of the Act, read with The Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014 (‘the Rules'), to have the audit of its cost records conducted by a cost accountant in practice.

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and remuneration of
Mis. M. Ritesh & Associates, Cost Accountants (Ritesh N. T. Proprietors), as the Cost Auditors of the Company o
conduct Cost Audits of the Company for the year ending 31" March, 2020, at a remuneration of Rupees Twenty
Five Thousand plus applicable taxes and out-ol-pocket expenses.

Ms. N Ritesh & Associates have submitted a certificate regarding their eligibility [or appointment as Cost Auditors
of the Company, The said certificate will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during
11.00 AM to 1.00 P.M and shall also available at the meeting. M/s. N, Ritesh & Associates have vast experience in
the field of eost audit and have conducted the audit of the cost records of the Company for the past several years.
In accordance with the provision of Section 148 of the Act read with the Rules, the remuneration payable to the

Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the Shareholders of the Company.
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The Board commends the remuneration of Rs. Twenty Thousand plus an applicable tax to M/s. N, Ritesh &
Associates as the Cost Auditors and the approval of the Shareholders is sought for the same by an Ordinary
Resolution

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or relative of Directors and KMPs is concerned or

terested in the Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the accompanying notice.

Item No. 5:

At the Board Meeting of the Company head on 28" May, 2019, the Board had, based on the recommendations of
the NRC and subject to the approval of the Members, appointed Mr. Rajesh R Deora (DIN 00312316) as an
Addition Direetor, Pursuant to seetion 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Rajesh R. Deora holds office only up to
the date of forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The Board of Directors has received a notice from the
shareholder of the Company pursuant to section 160 of the Act, signifying their intention to propose Mr, Rajesh R.
Deora as a candidate for the olfice of Director.

Mr. Rajesh R Deora possesses business experience of more than 20 years.

The Company has received from Mr. Rajesh R Deroa (i) consent in writing to act as Director in Form DIR 2
pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, (i) Intimation in
Form DIR 8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that he is
not disqualified under sub-scction (2) of Section 1064 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Resolution secks the approval of members for the appointment of Mr. Rajesh R, Deora as Additional Directors
of the Company and will be liable to retire by rotation.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Mr. Rajesh R. Deora proposed to be appointed, as a Director, fulfills the
condition specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made hereunder and also the provision as laid
down in listing agreement and he is Non-Executive Non-Independent Director.

Non Birertor or Key managerial Personnel of the Company and / or their relative, except Mr. Ramu §. Deora
Director and Mrs. Grace R. Deora, Director who are related to Mr. Rajesh R, Deora are interested in the resolution,

The Board recommends this Resolution for your Approval,

Item No. 6:

Pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 the Company is required to obtain consent of the Board and prior approval of
the members by Special Resolution in case certain Related Party Transactions exceed such sum as is specified in
the Rules. The aforesaid provisions are not applicable in respect transactions entered into by the Company in the

ordinary course of business on arm's length basis. Though the Company always does the business with its related
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parties at arm length and in ordinary course of business but there may be some transactions done in the interest
ol the Company and for which your approval is required under the provisions of the Act.
The proposal outlined above is in the interest of the Company and the Board recommends the resolution setting
out in accompanying Notice as Special Resolution,
None of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company is concerned or interested in the said
resolution expect to extent of their shareholding in the company or any other interest as Director or sharcholder
or pariner or otherwise in such related party entity, if any.
The Board recommends this Resolution for your Approval.

By order of the Board of Directors

For Triechem Products Limited

e
e
e DB s i T
Grace R Deora Ramu S, Deora
Director Director & CEO
DIN: 00312080 DIN: 00312369

Place: Mumbai

Dated: 28™ May, 2019

Registered Office:

4" Floor. Sambava Chambers,

Sir - M. Road, Fort, Mumbai: 400 001
CIN: L24249MH 1972PLCO15544

Email; investorf@itriochemproducts.com

Website: www triochemproducts.com
Phone No.: 91 22 22663150
Fax No.; 91 22 22024657
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED Lol

MANUFACTURERS OF ETHICAL PHARMACEUTICAL PRODUCTS

Reqgd. Office : 4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. .Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001
Tel. 1 00 91 {22) 4082 B100 | Fax . 00 91 (22) 4082 8181 | E-mail : info@amphray.com
Corporate Identity Number : L24249MH1972PLC0O15544

BOARD'S REPORT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Dear Members,
The Board of Directors are pleased to present the 47"Annual Report of the Company for the year ended 317 March,
2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended 31" March, 2019 is summarized below: (Rs. in Lakh)

| | Year ended | Year ended
! 31.03.2019 | 31.03.2018

I Revenue from Operation** | 1,235.47 3,499.05

'Emings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization 169.95 . 420.19 .
Less: Finance Cost ' 4546 | 38.48 |

| Less: Depreciation and Amortization Expense : 2054 24.73

| Profit before exceptional items and tax | 10395 356.98

Exceptional ltems ' - -

_ Profit Before Tax 10395 | 35698
Less: Tax Expense 29.65 101.47

' Profit for the period from continuing operations 74.30 255.51
Profit before tax from discuunlcd_t:rptai;ns - - s |
Tax expense of discontinued upcmﬂu}ns

' Profit for the period from discontinued operations - -
Profit for the period 74.30 25551
Other Com prtHe nsive Income (net of tax) 0,01 (0.28)
Total Comprehensive Income 0.01 (0.28)

_ Opening balance in Retained Earnings 600,76 345.25

' Closing balance in Retained Earnings 675.06 600.76

e Fi@rus for year ended Revenue from Dpemfibn are comparable numbers i.e. Excise Duty has been removed as
same does not form part of Revenue post GST implementation

AMOUNT CARRIED FORWARD TO RESERVES

The Board of Directors have decided to retain the entire amount of profit for the financial year 2018 - 2019 in the

profit and loss account

DIVIDEND
¢ is inadequate prolfit, the directors are unable to declare for the financial year ended March 31, 2019.
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The Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company is set out as “Annexure A" and the same is posted on the
Company's website at following the link:

hitp: www triochemproducts. com/investor-relations investor-relations.aspx.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

Your Company did not have any funds lving unpaid or unclaimed lor a period of seven years, Therefore there were

no funds which were required to be translerred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2019 was Rs.24.25 lakhs. During the vear under review the
company has not issued any shares or any convertible instruments. The Company has not issued shares with
differential voting rights. It has neither issued employee stock options nor sweat equity shares and does not have

any scheme 10 fund its emplovee 1o purchase the shares of the Company.

DEMATERIALIZATION

Your Company has tied up with National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India)
Lid. (CDSL) 1o enable the shareholders to trade and hold share in an electronic | dematerialized form. The

shareholders” are advised o take benefits of dematerialization

COMPANY'S PERFOMACE REVIEW

During the financial vear 2018-19, revenue lrom operation decreased to Rs.1,235.47 lakhs as against Rs.3,499.05
lakhs in previous vear. Cost of goods sold as a percentage to revenue from operation decreased to 68.28% as against
§2.25% in the previous year. Employee cost as a percentage Lo revenue from operations increased 1o 5,82% as against
2.09% in the previous vear. Other expense as a percentage 1o revenue from operations increased to 12.59% as against
1.92% in the previous vear. The profit after tax for the current year is Rs.74.30 lakhs against Rs.255.50 lakhs in the
previous vear. Increase in cost and pressure on margin resulted in lower net profit in the previous year.

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year 2018-19 and the date of this report. There has been no change in the

nature of business of the Company.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As per Regulation 33 of the Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations”) and applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder, the Financial Statements of the Company [or the
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financial year 2018-19 have been prepared in compliance with applicable Accounting Standards and on the basis of

audited financial statements of the Company, as approved by the respective Board of Directors.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR

[uring the vear under review, Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associated companies,
therefore disclosures in Form AOC-1 are not provided in this report. The poliey for determining Material Subsidiaries

in terms of Regulation 16(1)(c) of the Listing Regulation is not applicable to the Company.

OUTLOOK 2019-2020

APl manufacturers in India are making efforts to strengthen their marking capacity in the regulated markets by
improving products vields, modifving products processes, and increasing sales in the international markets. More
than 30% of the APls manufactured in India are exported to countries such as US, UK, Japan, etc. The total
production market of APLin India was valued at approximately US$ 11 Billion in FY 2016, This market is forecasted
to grow at a CAGR of around 9% during the period from FY2016-FY2022.

The total domestic consumption approximately 32% was imported, the total imports, china alone accounts for 57-
60% of the APls imported by India, The remaining imports are from countries such as ltaly, Germany, Malaysia and
others: These facts indicate that there is plentiful scope for the domestic APl market to grow, if the manufacturers
are able to produce the required amount of APls on their own, rather than importing it [rom other countries.

Ihe Indian APL industry can also be strengthened by encouraging export. This can be done by incentivizing the
domestic APl manufacturers with interesting schemes. The Foreign Trade Investment (FDI) policy should be
modified in such @ way that it gets simplified and maximum sectors are put on the automatic route, eliminating the
need for government approval. Apart from this, the scientists should be motivated to work harder in their field by
meentivizmg innovations. Incentives will give the scientists necessary push to work towards the development of
novel API molecules that will help in the growth of the APl industry in India.

In an increasingly complex and competitive economic landscape, the need 1o align people, processes and
technologies is stronger than ever, Access or availability of modern technology can help enterprises reduce cost and
time taken to innovate and to offer sophisticated products and services. This will help key APl manufacturers of the
country ditterentiate from global peers.

Currently, India does not have any database that maintains the record of approved APIs present in the market and
the APl manulactures in India. The government should ask the department, which regulates the APl market in India,
to maintain a record of APIs and their manufacturers. This data should be made available online so that people who

require the necessary information can aceess it easily. (Reference Indian API Market Outlook 2022)

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE




All pharmaceuticals companies are not integrated with a separate unit for formulation of active drug ingredients.
This has led 10 an increase in outsourcing of these molecules from the manufacturing sites. Outsourcing also
chimimates the need of investing expensive manufacturing processes. Due to unfavorable market condition and
decreasing demand in jodine derivative market, your company’s turnover is decrease in comparison to performance
of previous year.

The market is expected to stable during the end of FY2019-20, with the expectation of an improvement in the market
conditions during the year, the Company will endeavor to perform better than last vear.

As regards to infrastructure, Your Company's head office and factory are adequately equipped to provide complete
support to the customer, Internal control systems have been well established and cost consciousness in factory
operation will lead to improved profitability in the long run. Your Directors are confident that the company will

improve the performance in the current year

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GURANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The company has not given any loans or corporate guarantee or provide any security covered under the provisions

of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

FIXED DEPOSIT

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public during the vear under review. No amount on account

of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on 31" March, 2019.

CREDIT FACILITIES

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the support from Company’s bankers namely State

Bank of Indix,

INSURANCE

All insurable assets of the Company including inventories, warchouse premises, etc. are adequately insured,

AWARDS

Your Company has not received any Award during the financial 2018-19,

SIGNIFICANCE AND MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

There were no significance and material orders passed by regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and company operations in future. There were no material changes and commitments affecting the

financial position of the company accurring between March 31, 2019 and the date of this Report of the Directors,
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All Related Party contract | arrangements | transaction that were enter into during the financial year were on an arm's
length basis, in the ordinary course of business and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act
and the Listing Regulation,

No material Related Party Transaction were enter during the financial year by the Company, Accordingly, the
disclosure of Related Party Transaction, as required under Section 134(3)(hj of the Act on Form AOC-2 is not
applicable 1o the Company.

All Related Party Transaction are placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Prior omnibus approval of the
Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are planned repetitive on nature and omnibus approvals
are taken as per the policy laid down for unforeseen transaction. Related Party Transactions entered into pursuant
to omnibus approval so granted are placed before the Audit Committee for its review on quarterly basis, specifying
the nature, value and terms and conditions of the transactions.

During the vear under review, the Company has amended the policy on Related Party Transaction in line with the
revised Listing Regulation and the same is uploaded on the Company's website at the link

hittp:www iriochemproducts. com/investor-relations investor-relations. aspx.

The details of the related party transactions as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) - 24 are set out in Notes
to Financial Statements of the Company. Form AOC-2 pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013

read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is set out in the "Annexure B” (o this report,

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate system of internal control to safeguard and protect from loss, unauthorized use or
disposition of its assets. All the transactions are probably authorized, recorded and reported to the Management.
The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books of accounts
and reporting financial statements. The internal auditor of the company checks and verifies the internal control and
munitors them in accordance with policy adepted by the company. The company continues to ensure proper and
adequate svstems and procedures commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

As require by the Companies Act 2013, your Company has implemented an Internal Financial Control (IFC)
Framework. Section 134(5)(e) requires the Directors to make an assertion in the Directors Responsibility Statement
that your Company has laid down internal financial controls, which are in existence, adequate and operate
effectively. Under Section 177 (4)(vii), the Audit Committee evaluates the internal financial controls and makes
representation to the Board. The purpose of the [FC is to ensure that policies and procedures adopted by your
Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business are implemented, including policies for and
the safeguarding its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting

tecords, and timely preparation of reliable financial information. The IFC implementation required all processes of
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vour Company to be documented alongside the controls within the process. All processes were satisfactorily tested -
for both design and effectiveness during the vear,

The TPL cade of conduct and accompanying training, seeks to ensure evervone in your Company understands how
Lo put values into practice, Mandatory training on the Code of Conducet helps your Company's employees gain the
confidence to make the right decisions and become familiar with the policies and procedures applicable to their
areas of operation, avoid conflicts of interest and report all unethical and illegal conduct,

Additionally, emplovees are required 1o certify in an annual basis whether there have been any transactions which
are fraudulent, tlegal or violate of the Code of Conduct. Strong oversight and self-monitoring policies and
procedures demonsieate your Company’s commitment to the highest standards of integrity.

Your Company has also successfully complemented its Internal Control Framework with the test of design and
effectiveness of all its processes across the organization as part of meeting the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013, to ensure the existence and clfectiveness of Internal Financial Controls.

The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's internal control enviconment and
monitors the implementation of audit recommendations, including those relating 1o strengthening of the
Company's risk management policies and systems. The ultimate objective being, a Zero Surprise, Risk controlled

Chrganization,

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Appointment and Cessation:

The sudden and sad demise of Mr. Mahabirprasad S, Deora, Non-Executive Non-Independent director of the
Company on 15" February, 2019, was appointed on the Board of the Company on 30" June, 1975 and played crucial
leadership roles through his long career and the Company immensely benelitted [rom his vision and leadership
during his tenure. Mr, Mahabirprasad 8. Deora sudden and unexpected passing away will be irreparable loss 1o the
Company and all the Directors and Employee if the Company convey deep sympathy, sorrow and condolences to
his family.

Al the meeting of the Board of Director held on 28" May, 2019, the Board, on the recommendation of the NRC,
appointed Mr. Rajesh R, Deora as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 28" May, 2019 and he
shall hold office only up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and being eligible to offer himself for re-
appointment as Director, in accordance with the provision of the section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Articles of Association of the Company. Refer to item no. 5 of Notice and Explanatory Statement.

Composition of the Board:

The Company's policy is to have an appropriate blend of non-executive and independent directors, to maintain the

independence of the Board functions of governance and management.
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The compaosition of the Board of Directors is fully eomplied with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, including the appointment of requisite number of Independent Directors
and Woman Director. As on 31 March 2019, the Board comprised of two (2) Non-Executive Independent Directors
andd four (4) Non-executive Non-Independent Directors. Woman Director is a Non-executive Non-Independent
Directors. The Board has no institutional director,

Retirement by rotation and subsequent re-appointment:

In aceordance with the provision of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-cnactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and the Articles of Association of the
Company. Mr. Ramu S. Deora (Non-Executive Director) liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being
eligible have offered themselves [or re-appointment. In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Rules issued thereunder, the Listing Regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Independent Directors and the Managing Director of the Company are not liable to retire by rotation.

Independent Directors with materially significant, pecuniary or business relationship with the Company:

There is no pecuniary or business relationship between the Non-Executive/Independent Directors and the
Company. A declaration 1o this effect if also submitted by all the Directors at the beginning of each financial year.
Independent Directors:

The independent Directors of the Company have been appointed for tenure of 5 {five) years up to 29" March, 2020,
The Company has on its Board, eminent Independent Directors who have brought in independent judgment 10
Board's deliberations including issued of strategy, risk management and overall governance. They have played a
pivotal role in safeguarding the interests of all stakeholders.

The Independent Directors have submitted declarations that they meet the criteria of Independence laid down
under the Companics Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations and have confirmed that they do not hold directorship
more than the prescribed limit in the Listing Regulations. The Company has also issued formal appointment letters
to all the Independent Directors in the manner provided under the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued
thereunder

The terms and conditions for appeintment of independent director and a sample letter of appoiniment issued 1o
the, are posted on the Company's website at following the link:

hitp: swww inochemproducts. cominvestor-relations investor-relations.aspx.

Declaration of Independence from Independent Directors:

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria
on independence as prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Schedule and Rules
issued hereunder as well as Regulation 16 of Listing Regulations (including any statutory modifications) or re-
5 thereof for the time being in force).

24



Details of Key Managerial Personnel:

The designated as Key Managerial Personnel of the Company in compliance with provisions of Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2015 and Regulations 6(1) of Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
[isclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are Mr. Ramu 5. Deora - Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Puran |. Parmar -
Chiel Finaneial Officer; Resignation of Mr. Bharat B, Gangani from the post of Company Secretary & Compliance
Officer ol the Company dated 8 May, 2019. Further, the Company is in the process of appointing his successor
shall be appointed shortly.

Remuneration of directors, key managerial personnel and particulars of emplovees:

The remuneration paid to the Directors is in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration policy formulated
in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the listing Regulations (including
any statutory modifications(s) or re-enactments(s) thereof for the time being in Force). The information required
under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in
force) i respect of Directors/employee of the Company is as follows:

The company director has [orgone remuneration. Further no sitting fee has been paid to any director during the
financial year. The particulars of the employees who are covered by the provisions contained in Rule 5(2) and rule
5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are:

a) Emploved throughout the vear Nil

b) Emploved for part of the year il

The increase in remuneration of employees other than the Key Managerial Personnel is considerably in line with the
increase in remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel. It is affirmed that the remuneration paid 1o the Directors,
Key Management Personnel and senior management is as per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the
Company

in terms of Section 136 of the Act, the reports and accounts are being sent 1o the members and others entitled
thereto, excluding the information on employees’ particulars which s available for inspection by the members at
the Registered office of the company during business hours on working days of the company up to the date of
ensuing Annual General Meeting, If any member is interested in inspecting the same, such member may write to the
Chief Financial Officer in advance,

Nomination and Remuneration Policy:

The Company has formulated and adopted the Nomination and Remuneration Policy in accordance with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules Issued thercunder and the Listing Regulations.
The said Palicy of the Company, fnter alia, provides that the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall

formulate the criteria for appointment if Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors on the Board of




remuneration including determination ol qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other
matters as provided under sub-section (3) of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force). The Policy is also available on the website of
the Company at [ollowing the link:

hitp: triochemproducts com uploads I nvestor-relations pdfs nomination-and-remuneration-policy-26. pdf

Performance Evaluation:

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company empowers the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee 1o formulate a process for evaluating the performance of Directors, Committees of the Board and the
Buard as a whole,

Pursuant 1o the applicable provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulation, the Directors carried out the annual
performance evaluation of the Board, Committees of Board and Individual Directors along with assessing the quality,
and quantity and timelines of flow of information between the Company management and the Board that is
necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties, An evaluation sheet was given to each

director wherein certain criteria were set out for which ratings are to be given.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
In terms of cireular no.: CIRMRED/DSAZ12013 dated 30,05.2013 and circular no.: CIRCFDPOLICY CELL/T 2014

dated 15.09.2014 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Regulation 15 of Securities and Exchange
Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 shall not apply to listed entities
having paid up equity share capital not exceeding rupees ten crore and net worth not exceeding rupees twenty five
crore, #s on the last day of the previous financial year. In this connection, we wish to inform you that in respect af
our Company as on the last audited balance sheet as at 31.03.2019 paid up equity capital of the company is Rs.24.50
lakh which is less than ten crores and net worth Rs.8.78 Crore which is less than rupees twenty five crore. Hence,
Regulation 15(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requircments)

Regulations, 2015 not be applicable 1o us.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETING HELD

The Hoard of Directors duly meets four times during the financial year from 1™ April 2018 to 31% March 2019, The
dates on which the meetings were held are 29" May 2018, 13" August 2018, 3" November 2018 and 9™ February

2019,

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS

Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings held during the financial vear ended 31% March 2019 and at last AGM:
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Name of Director Category Number of meetings | Attendance at the last AGM
(in alphabetical order) Held | Auended @ Held on 25" August, 2018
Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia ~ Non-Exccutive, Independent | 4 § Yes
Mrs. Grace R. Deora | Non-Exeeutive 4 4 Yes
Mr. Mahabirprasad 8. Deora | Non-Executive 4 | 3 | Yes -
Mr. .‘-}h}'am. Sunder Sharma | Non-Executive 4 i Yes
Mr. Sunil 8§, Jhunjhunwala | Non-Executive, Ind;pt.'ntlﬁnt A 1 Yes
" Mr Ramu S. Deora | Non-Executive i 4 | Yes

Attendance of Directors at the Committee Meetings held during the financial vear ended 31 March 2{}_1_'3.

' Name of Director Status - Category Audit Nomination and | Stakeholders

(in alphabetical order) Committee Remuneration | Relationship
Meeting Commiltee Committee
Held | Auended | Held | Auended | Held | Attended

Mr. Girish Kumar Member | Non-Executive, |4 | 4 i |4 i |4

Pungalia Independent !

Mr. Mahahirprasad 5. Member | Non-Executive | - - - E 4 3

Deora

| Mrs. Grace R, ‘Member | NonExceutve | 4| 4 i |4 § |1

| Deori

Mr. Sunil § ' Chairman | Non-Exccutive, | 4 4 4 4 4 4

Jhunjhunwala ' Independent

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder and Regulation 25(3) of SEBI (LODR) Listing

Regulation, 2013, the independent directors held their separate meeting on 30" March 2019, without attendance of
non-ndependent directors and members of Management, to inter alia:

All independent directors were present in meeting,

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Rased on the frame work of internal financial control and compliance system established and maintained by the
Company, work performed by the Internal, Statutory, Cost and Secretarial Auditors, including audit of the internal
financial control over financial reporting by the Statutory Auditor and the reviews performed by Management and
the relevant Board Committee, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company's
internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2018-149.

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the
hest of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

4 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with




e

they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the

end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

¢) they Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on going concern basis;

¢ they have laid down internal controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls
are adequate and are operating effecrively; and.

f) they have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems are adequate and operating effectively;

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composition of Audit Committee 1s in alignment with provision of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read

with the Rules issued thereunder and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. The members of the Audit Committee

are financially literate and have experience in financial management. The Audit Commitiee comprises of the

following directors;

Name Status Category |
Mr. Sumil 5. Jhunjhunwala Chairman | Non-Executive- Independent Director |
| Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia Member Non-Executive - Independent Director _
Mrs. Grace R. Deora | Member Director I

There have been no instances during the year when recommendations of the Audit Committee were not accepted

by the Board.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company is having a Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprising of the following directors:

Name ' Status | Category

| Mr. Sunil H.-_lmihunwulé'n Chairman Nun-ExecEii{fetinr]upendn:m Director

" Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia Member ' Non-Executive - Independent Director

| Mis. Grace R. Deora _ Member Director -

All the recommendations made by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were accepted by the Board of

[hrectors of the Company,

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE




| Name | Status [ Category

Mr. Sunil S, Jhunjhunwala Chairman | Non-Exccutive - Inthnd:nI Director
Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia Member | Non-Executive - Independent Director
| Mrs. Grace R. Deora Member | Director

Al the recommendations made by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee were accepted by the Board of

Directors of the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The well-disciplined workforce which has served the company for four decades lies at the very foundation of the
company's major achievements and shall well continue for the vears to come. Maintenance of a cordial and
supportive environment is a pre-requisite for the smooth functioning of any organization. This requires the
management and the emplovees to fully understand and respect each other. On an ongoing basis the management
iddentifies and implements necessary measures to maintain a positive climate and improve performance levels. The
management has always carried out systematic appraisal of performance and imparted training at periodic intervals.
The company has always recognized talent and has judiciously followed the principle of rewarding performance.
Ihe Company continued the wellare activities for the employees, which include Medical Care, Group Insurance and
Canteen Facility. To enrich the skills of employees and enrich their experience, the Company arranges, Practical
Training Courses by Internal and External Faculty.

Your Direetors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the dedication and commitment displayed by all

executives officers and staff at all levels of the company.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORK PIACE

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace. As per requirements of the Sexual Harassment
of women at the workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 ("Act”) and rules made thereunder, your
Company has adopted a policy for prevention of sexual harassment at workplace and has constituted an Internal
Complaints Commitice. During the vear, your Company has not received any complaints on Sexual Harassment
under the said Act. Display on website of the Company at following the link:

hitp: Ariochemproducts com/uploads/Investor-relations pdfs prevention-of-sexual-harasment-at-workpalce-policy-

TR.pdf

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

Although the company has long been followed the principle of risk minimization as is the norm in every industry, it
has now become a compulsion. Therefore, the Board members were informed about the risk assessment and

minimization procedures after which the Board formally adopted steps for framing, implementing and monitoring
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The main objective of this policy is to ensure sustainable business growth with stability and to promote a pro-active
approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated with the business. In order to achieve with the key
objectives, the policy establishes a structured and disciplined approach to Risk Management, in order to guide
decisions on risk related issues.

In today s challenging and competitive environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing the
growth plans of the Company are imperative. The common risks inter alia are: Regulations, competitive, Business
risk. Technology obsolescence, Investments, retention of talent and expansion of facilities.

Business risk, inter-alia, further includes financial risk, political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk.

As a matter of policy, these risks are assessed and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the same. The Risk

Management Policy is posted in the Website of the Company.

RISK & MITIGATION

The Company has identified various risks faced by the Company from different areas. As per the provision of the
Companies Act, 2013 and listing agreements, the Board has adopted a risk management policy whereby a proper
framework is set up. Appropriate structures are present so that risks are inherently monitored and controlled. A

combination of policies and procedures attempts to counter risk as and when they evolve,

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Act, a vigil mechanism has been established [or Directors and emplovees to report
to the management. instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company's code
of conduct or ethics policy

The Company believes in the conduet of the affairs of its constituents by adopting the highest standards of
professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior, in line with the Code of Conduct. The Rile of the emplayee
in pointing out such violations of the Code cannot be undermined.

Further, the Policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employee who avail of the mechanism
anel also provides for direct aceess 1o the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. The Company maintains a website

www.triochemproducts com where detailed information of the company and its products are provided.

CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the Board and all
emplovees in the course of day to day business operations of the company. The Code has been display on website
of the Company at following the link

hitp: www triochemproducts.com/uploads Investor-relations pdfs directors—senior-management-personnel-24. pdf




The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be followed by the Directors
and the designated emplovees in their business dealings and in particular on matters relating to integrity in the work
place, in business practices and in dealing with stakeholders.,

All the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code.

DISCLOSURE OF VARIOUS POLICIES:

Ihe Board has approved various policies in their meeting so that the Committees work effectively and in accordance
with the provisions as stipulated in the Policies. Various policies as approved by the Board are posted in the Website
ol the Company.

Familiarization programmers for the Independent Directors:
In Compliance with the requirements of SEBI Regulations, vour Company has put in place a familiarization

programmed for the Independent Directors o familiarize them with their role, rights and responsibilities as
Directors, the working of the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model, ete.
it is also display on website of the Company at following the link

http: Swww triochemproducts. com/uploadsInvestor-relations pdfs familarization-program-for-independent-

directors-31 E{lf

Risk Management Policy:

The Company has implemented Risk Management Policy and the Board of Directors has prepared a comprehensive
framework of risk management for assessment of risks and to determine the responses to these risks so as to
minimize their adverse impact on the organization. The policy as approved by the Board of Directors is uploaded
on the Company's website.

htep: www triochemproducts.com uploads Investor-relations pdfs risk-management-policy-235 pdf

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy:

In order o ensure that the activities of the company and its employees are conducted in a fair and transparent
manner by adoption of highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior the company
has adopted 1 vigll mechanism policy. The aim of the policy is to provide adetuate safeguards against victimization
ol whistle blower who avails of the mechanism and also provide direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, in appropriate or exceptional cases.

Accordingly, ‘Whistle Blower Policy’ has been formulated with a view to provide a mechanism lor the Directors and
employees of the Company to approach the Ethies Counsellor or the Chairman of the Audit Commitice of the
Lompany.

The purpose of this policy is 1o provide a framework 1w promote responsible and secure whistle blowing, It protects
employees willing 1o raise a concern about serious irregularities within the Company. This policy is uploaded on

pany's website.
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hitp: www triochemproducts com/uploads Investor-relations pdfs vigil-mechanism--whistle-blower-policy-28. pdf

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT

Statutory Auditors:
M KANU DOSHI AND ASSOCIATE LLP (Firm Registration No. 104746W / W100096), Chartered Accountants,

Mumbar were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 45" AGM till the conclusion of the 50"
AGM. Ms. KANU DOSHI AND ASSOCIATE LLP, Chartered Accountants have confirmed their eligibility and
qualification required under Section 139, 141 and other applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
issued thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force).
The Auditors Report for the financial vear ended 31° March, 2019 on the financial statements of the Company is a
part of Annual Report. The Auditors Report for the financial year ended 31" March, 2019 does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

The ohservation of the Auditors in their report read together with the Notes 1o Accounts are self-explanatory and
therefore, in the opinion of the Directors, do not call for any further explanation. The auditor's reports do not
contain any reservation, qualification & adverse remark for the financial year under review.,

internal Auditors;

Mis. Haren Sanghvi & Associates, Chartered Accountants performs the duties of internal auditors of the company
and their report is reviewed by the audit commitiee from time to time.

Cost anditor:

The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendations made by the Audit Committee, has appointed
Mis. N Ritesh & Associates, Cost Accountants (Ritesh N, T. Proprietors) to conduct the cost audit of the Company
to conducts the audit of cost records for the financial year 2019-20. The remuneration proposed to be paid to the
Cost Auditors, subject to ratification by the shareholders of the Company at the ensuing 46™ Annual General Meeting,
The Company has received consent from M/, N, Ritesh & Associates, Cost Accountants (Ritesh N, T. Proprietors),
to act as the Cost Auditors for conducting audit of the cost records for the financial year 2019-20 along with a
certificate conlirming their independence and arm's length relationship.

Secretarial Auditors:

Pursuant to the provision of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s
Ragini Chokshi & Co (CP No: 1436, FCS: 2390), Company Secretaries to conduct and audit of the secretarial records
for the financial year 2019-20

The Company has received consent from M/s Ragini Chokshi & Co. (CP No.: 1436, FCS: 2390), Company Secretaries

1o act as the auditors for conducting audit of the Secretanial records for the financial year ended 31" March, 2020
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The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31% March, 2019 is set out in “Annexure C” to this report.

The Seeretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provision of Section 92 and 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the Annual Return in of the Company as on 31" March

2019 in the preseribed Form No. MGT 9 1s set out in “Annexure D" to this report:

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF 1CS1

The Director have devised proper systems and process for complying with the requirements of applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such system were adequate and operating

effectively

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility shall not be applicable to
companies having net worth not exceeding Rs 500 crore or more or turnover not exceeding Rs. 1,000 crore or net
profit not exceeding Rs.3 crore or more during any financial vear, as on the last day of the previous financial year.
In this connection, we wish to inform you that in respect of our Company as on the last audited balance sheet as at
$1.05. 2018 neither the net worth exceeds Rs. 300 crores or turnover exceeds Rs1,000 crore or net profit exceeding
Rs.5 crore. Hence, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility would not be

applicable

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The mformation on conversation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule § of The Companies (accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed

herewith “Annexure- E".

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

The miormation on Research and Development in Form B is annexed herewith as “Annexure E”

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS & CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

In compliance with Accounting Standard AS-28 relating to “Impairment of Assels”, the company has reviewed the
carrving amount of its fixed assets as at the end of the year. Based on the strategic plans and such valuation of the

fixed assets of the company, on impairment of assets is envisaged at the balance sheet date.
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The company has been very well supported [rom all quarters and therefore your directors wish to place on record
their sincere appreciation for the support and co-operation received from Employees, Dealers, Suppliers, Central,
and State Governments, bankers, and others associated with the Company.

Your Dircctors wish to thanks the banks, financial institutions, sharcholders and business associates for their

continued support and cooperation.

We look forward to recetving the continued patronage from all quarters to become a better and stronger company.

CAUSIONARY STATEMENT

The statements contained in the Board's Report and Management Discussion and Analysis contain certain statements

relating to the future and therefore are forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities, laws and
regulations, Various {actors such as cconomic conditions, chang::s in guvernment regulations, tax, regime, other
statues, market [orces and other associated and individual factors may however lead to variation in actual results.

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the forward looking statements.
On behalf of the Board of Direclors

For Triochem Products Limited

__,:'? . --‘—'-"___--—_-’I
R Decre— o
wrace R Deora Ramu 5. Deora
Director Director & CEO
DIN: D031 2080 DMN: D0A12369

Mumbuai, 28" May, 2019
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Triochem Products Limited
Annual Report 2018 - 2019 Annexure (A) to Board's Report

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY
(Approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 11" November, 2016)

INTRODUCTION

The Policy is called “TPL - Dividend Distribution Policy” (hereinafter referred 1o as “this Policy”) and shall be
effective from 11" November, 2016 ("Effective Date”),

In terms of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, including any statutory modifications(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force,

Triochem Products Limited (Hereinafter referred 1o as “the Company”) is required to frame this policy.

POLICY

This policy aims al ensuring compliance with the provisions of Regulations 43A of Securities and Exchange Board

of lndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including any statutory

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force.

The Company would, infer afia, consider the [ollowing financial parameters and/or internal & external factors

helore declaring dividend(s) or recommending dividend(s) to the sharcholders:

I, Current vear prolits arrived at after providing [or depreciation in accordance with the provisions of Section
124 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued
thereunder; and/or

2. Profit from any of the previous financial vear(s) arrived art after providing for depreciation in accordance with
the provisions of Section 123 and other applicable provision, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Rules issued thereunder,

5 Fund requirements to finance the working capital needs of the business;

4. Opportunities for investments of the funds of the Company to capture future growth in the industry, eg.
capital expenditure, network expansion, ete.;

5. Funding requirements for any organic and inorganic growth opportunities to be pursued by the Company:

. Optimal free cash to fund any exigencies, il any;

Prevailing legal requirements, regulatory conditions or restrictions laid down under the applicable laws

including tax laws
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In case the Board proposes not to distribute the Profit; the ground thereof and information on utilisation of the
retained carnings, if any, shall be disclosed to the shareholders in the Board's Report forming part of Annual
Report of the Company

The CFO jointly with the Directors & CEO of the Company shall suggest any amount 1o be declared/recommended

as Divicdend to the Hoard of Directors of the Company, taking into account the aforementioned parameters.

Parameters adopted w.r.t. various classes of shares:

1. The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares of the face value of Rs.10/~ each,
forming part of its Issued, Subscribed and Paid - up share capital.

2 Dividend (including interim and/or final) would be declared and paid to equity shareholders at the rate fixed
by the Board of Directors of the Company, it any, would be subject to the approval of the shareholders at the

ensuing Annual General Meeting,

AMENDMENTS TO THE POLCTY
The Company is committed to continuously reviewing and updating our policies and procedures. Therefore, this
policy is subject 10 modification. Any amendment(s) of any provision of this policy shall be carried out by the

persons authorised by the Board in this regards.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

fpo Qe o

Grace R, Deora Ramu 5. Deora
Director Director & CEO
DN DDAT 2080 DIN: DO312369

Mumbai. 28" May, 2019
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Triochem Products Limited

Annual Report 2018 - 2019 Annexure (B) to Board's Report
FORM A - 2

| Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule B(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of panticulars of contract [ arrangements entered into by the Company with refated parties referred to in Section 188(1) of
the Companes Act, 2003 includhing certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereio

1 DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS NOT AT ARM'S LENGTH BASIS:

& Mameis) ol the related party and natire of relationship

b Mature of confracts | amangements | rnsactions

¢ Puration of the contracts [ armngements | ransactions

o Silent terms of the contracts or arrangements o transactions including the value, il any
¢ Justification for entering into such contrcts or arrangements or ransactions

f Dateds) of approval by the Board

Nol
Applicable

¢ Amount paid as acvances, il any
b Date on which (a) the requisite resolution was passed in general meeting as required under ficst proviso 1o Section 188 of
the Compunies Act, 2015

Q 2 DETAILS OF MATERIAL CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT OR TRANSACTIONS AT ARM'S LENGTH BASIS:

a Name(8) of the related party and nature of relationship

b Nuture of controcts ( armangements | ransactions

¢ Duration of the contnicts [ arrangements | transactions Nuot

d Silent terms of the contracts or arrangements 1o trnsactions including the value, if any Applicable
¢ Datedsy of approval by the Board

[ Amount puid as advances, if any

Al selaterd party transactions are in thee ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis which are approved by Audit Committee of the
Company

On behall of the Board of Directors

— T e
Girace K. Deora Ramu & Deora
Birectar Direttor & CEO
TAIN: D3 1 2080 DIN: DDA12569

Mumbstl. 2Hth May, 2019

%



Anun exure ()

7 . - = Tel. : 022-2283 1120
l}s Raglm Chokshi & Co. G203 1104
Company Secretaries

34, Kamer Building, 5th Fioor, 38 Cawas|l Patel Street, Forl, Mumbai - 400 001
E-mail * ragini c@rediffmail com / mail@csraginichokshi.com
web: esraginichokshi com

Date :

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

PN CIAL YEAR ¥
[ Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P.M. Road
Fort Mumbai- 400 001.

We have conducted the secretanal audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Triochem Products Limited (CIN:
L24249MH1972PLC015544) (heremnafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

& Based on our verification of Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and retumns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives dunng the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit
period covering the Financial Year 1* April, 2018 to 31* March, 2019 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:
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We have E?tamincd the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by Triochem Products Limited (“the Company”) for the audit penod
covering the Financial Year 1% April, 2018 to 31* March, 2019 according to the provisions

of:
(1)
(1)
(1i1)

(iv)

(v)

The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA'} and the rules made
thereunder:

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act,1999 and the Rules and Regulation made there
under to the extent of Exchange Commercial Borrowings;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

a.

b.

L

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantnal Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the
aundit period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 (Not applicabie to the Company during the audit period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable as the Company has not issued
any debt securitics during the period under review);

The securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the companies act and dealing with
client. (Not applicable as the Company is not registered as Regisrar to an issue
and Share Transfer Agent during the financial year nnder review);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 {Nmapphmﬂ:uth:ﬂummyhasnnthﬂstdmmny




h. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations,
2009 (Not applicable as the Company has not bought back any of its securities
during the period under review)

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and

mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other apphicable Acts, Laws and
Regulations to the Company.

We are of the opinion that the management has complied with the following laws
specifically applicable to the Company:

1. Factroies Act, 1948

2. Drugs and Cosmetics Act 1940

3. The Pharmacy Act 1948

4. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution)Act, 1981
5. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution)Act, 1974

6. Minimum Wages Act, 1948

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligation and Disclsoure
Requirements)Regulations 2015 and the Listing Agreements entered into by the
Company with Stock Exchanges.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in the compliance with the provision of the Act.

Adﬂquatenutk:cisgivenmaﬂdirectﬂrsmscheduletheﬂnardlﬂecﬁng,andthesamewerﬂ
sent at least seven days in advance, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
Seven days before the date of Meeting, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting. E




We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable Financial laws like
Direct & Indirect tax laws, Service tax has not been reviewed in this audit since the same
has been subject to review by the statutory financial audit and other designated
professionals.

As per the minutes of the Board duly recorded and signed by Chairman, the decisions of the
Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

W:mmtmﬂmmmadmamsymmmdmmmmcmmpmy
commensurate with size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulation and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no specific events/actions having
a major beaning on the Company's affair in pursuance of of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guideline etc.

For Ragini Chokshi & Co.
(Company Secretaries)

1'&?3\&.':.:;"
Makarand Patwardhan

(Partner)
C.P. No. 9031/ACS No.11872

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28/05/2019
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Triocliem Products Limited

Annual Report 2018 - 2019 Annexure (D) to Board's Report
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN IN FORM MGT-9

[ Pursuant to Section Y92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companics (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
| REGISTRATION AND OTHER DEAILS

i CIN L24249MEHT19T72PLCO] 5544
ii Registration Date 7 (1 1972
iii. Name of the Company Triochem Products Limited

iv Category of the Company
1 Publie Compuny Yes

Sub Category of the Company

Y Company having share capital Yes
v Address of the Registered Office and Contact Details
| Company Name Tricchem Products Limited
2 Agldress dth Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. I M. Rowd, Fon
Q A Town  City Mumbai
| Stule Maharashira
5 Pin Code AOHMIT
O Country Name India
T Loumey Code 1D
H Telephone math ST10 Area Code Number {022 22663150
9 Fax Number (22) 22024657
10 Email Adelress www investor{E i hemproducts. oo
11 Website, i any wrrw i hemptoduets. com
12 Mume ol the Police Station having jurisdiction where the Registered Office is situated M R A Marge. Police Station
vi Whether shares listed on recognized Stock Exchanges(s) Yes
Dietails of the Stock Exchanges where shares are listed:
S Mo Stock Exchanges(s) Stock Code(s)
| Hombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) 512101
vii Name and Address of Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA)
Q I RTA Sharex Drymamic (India) Pyt Lid
= 2 Arlidress =100, 247 Park, L 5 5. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai : 400083
4 Tuwn | City Mumihal
4 Stule Maharashtra
5 I'in Code A0S
6y Country Name Inidia
T Country Code 15D
# Telephone with ST Area Code Number (022) 28515644 | S606
4 Fax Number (022 28512885
10 Email Address eupport{ahaseximdis com
|1 Website, if any warw sharexdndia con

1] PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Al the business contributing 10% or more of the total urmover of the Company shall be stated:-

sl Name and Description of main Products @ Services NIC Code of the % to tetal turnover of
N Product / Services the company

Linulacturing of chemical substances used in the manufacturing of pharmaceuticals 24231 100%
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN IN FORM MGT-9
|Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)
I PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Jal = Not applicable
IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of Total Equity)
A Category-wise Sharcholding

Category ol Shareholders Ne. of Shares hold af the beginning of the  No. of Shares hold at the end of the year (As % of
year (As on OLO4.2018) on A1.03.2019) Change
Demat  Physical  Total  %oftotal  Demat  Physical  Total % of uwwal  during the
shares shares year

A Promoters Sharcholding

1 Indian
o Individual /Hindu 1,08, 190 i 1,68, 1490 GH. G4y | 68 150 = 168 190 GH 540
Undivided Family
b Central Government - z ; = ; - . . :
¢ State Government - - - 2 = : = F
. d Bodlies Corporate . : = - = 2 " .
e Thank / FI a 5 : : 5 = = . :
I Any Other : . . : ; 5 - 2
Sub Total (A)(1) 168,190 - 16890 GRG40 168190 168190 68.649
2 Foreign
a NR! Inclivicloals = E : : : = . g
Iy Cther Individuals = = . . - . : -
¢ Hodies Corporate - = & 3 = . . 2 2
o Hunk./ ] - = = 2 - " s x
e Any Cther = = - . v " " B .
Suls Tetal (AN 2) 5 E 2 3 5 : 5 = 5
Tonal Shareholding of 168,190 - 168 190 6GRO49 ] 68190 - 168 190 GH 044 3
Promuoters (A)y=(A)(1)

B Public Shareholding

1 Institutions

Q 1 Mutual Funds / UTI . z % i 2 = . -
b Bunk | Fl . : - : : - . . -
¢ Central Government . : = . - . 5 - -
o State Government : - - - 2 3 ; = 5
e Venture Capital Funis . . - : : . . - .
[ Insurance Companics - . + - - . . = i
g Flis . ; s : : % ‘ é £
b Forcign Venture Capital . . . : z = . <

lwesiors
i Any Other (specily) . - - - P 5 . . g
sSuby Towal (B 1) 2 = =
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN IN FORM MGT-9
| Pursmant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Category of Shurehaolders No ol Shires hold at the beginning of the  No. of Shares hold at the end of the year (As % ol
year (As on 01.04.2018) on 31.03.2019) Chanye
Demat  Physical  Total  “%oftotal Demat Physical  Total  %ofioal  during the
shares shares year

2 Non-Institutions

i Bodies Corporaie 36,000 250 36250 14796 36, 000) 250 36,250 14,796 -

i Indian

it e rseas . - - - - - . a =

b Individual

i Individual Sharcholders - . - - = . : 2 3
helding nominal share . z s : : = : : =
capital up o 1 Jukh : 1 y . . . ! . .

it Indlivicdual Shiarcholders 11910 28,650 401,560 16.555 25,710 14850 40, 566 16555

holding nominal share
capital in excess of 1 lakh

. ¢ Any Uther {specify)

i Non-resident India . . - - - . . 2 -
it Uverseas Corporite Bodies . - - - - . . -
il Foreign Natlonals . - - 2 . - . = H
v NBFCs Registered with RE - - - - : . . .
v Trust = 5 u S . . - =
vi Foreign Bodies - . . = 5 E : 5
Sub Total (H)(2) A7 91 28900 ToBH  31.35] GLTH: 15,100 76810 31.351
Total Public Shareholding 47910 28,900 ThEID 31351 61710 15,100 76810 11.351 -
(Hy={H) 1+ (B d)
€ Share held by Custodians - - . . - : z :

for GERs & ALHs

GRAND TOTAL (A+B4-C) 216,100 28500 245000 100,000 220900 15,100 245000 100,000 -
B Shareholding of Promoters
Sl Sharcholder's Name Sharcholding at the beginning of the year  Shareholding at the end of the year (As.on % of
(2] Nip (As on 01,04, 2018) 41.03.2019) Change in
No of  %of wial % of Shares Pledged | No.of %ol total % of Shares Pledged | sharcholdin
Shares  shares encumbered to total Shares  shares  encumbered 10 total B uring
shares? shares* the year
I Mr. Hajesh R Deora A6000 14694 - 6,000 14.094 -
2 Mrs. Gruce B Deora 0000 14094 . A6,000  14.6% -
A Mr Ramu &, Deora 45000 14082 - 34,500 14.082 -
4 Mr Ragiv B Deora 4270 13988 - 34270 13988 .
5 Ramu M Deora HUF 274200 11191 - 27420 11.191 -
Total 1GR90 GR 645 . 168,190 6B.6449 -
Notes

1 The term “encumbrance” has the same meaning as assigned to it in Regulation 28(3) of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Sharcs
andl Tukeovers) Regulations, 2011
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN IN FORM MGT-9
| Purspant o Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
C Change in Promoters' Shareholding

SI Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year  Cumulative Sharcholding during the vear Reuson
iy (0104, 20018 1o 31.03.2019)
Mo of Shares % of total Shares of Mo, of Shares % of total Shares of
the company the company
[ Mr. Rajiesh R Deora Movement
At the heginning of the year 36,000 14.694 36,000 14,694 during the
At the end of the vear 36,000 14,694 36,000 14,604 year - Nil
2 Mprs Gruce B Deorn Meowvement
At the heginning of the vear A 000 14.644 36,000 14,694 during the
A the end of the year 36, 1H) 14694 A6000 14.694 Yyear - Nil
5 Mr Kajiv R Beora Movemient
At the beginning of the vear 34.270 13 988 34.270 13,988 during the
At the end of the vear 44270 13,988 $4.270 13988 vear - Nil
. 4 Mr. Hamu & Deora Movement
At the heginning of the vear 44500 14082 34,500 14082 during the
At the end of the year 34,300 14,082 34500 14,082 year - Nil
5 Ramuo M Deora HUF Movement
AL the beginnimg of the vear 27420 11.192 27,420 11.192 during the
At the end of the vear 27,420 11.192 27,420 11.192 year - Nil
Noles;

I e of increase | decrease has been considered as the date on which beneficiary position was provided by the Depositories to the
Camprny.

1) Sharcholding pattern of top ten sharcholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

§1, Shareholder's Name Shareholding Cumulative Sharcholding duning the year
Nis Mo, of Shares % of total Shares of No. of Shares % of 1otal Shares of
the company the company
1 G Amprhay Pharmaceaticuls 12,000 4. B8 12, 100) 4.898
P L
‘ 2 Triochem Laboratoriss P 12,0000 A.8UB 12,006 AH0H
Ll
3 Ambernath Plasto 12.000 4808 12,0 489
Pickaging Pvi Lid
4 Ramesh Hajaram Fatl - . 12,0800 4. HY8
5 Hajkumar Saraf 7200 2554 7.200 24950
5 Vijava Hani Saeal 6,250 2551 -
T Vishwanath M [hunjhunwala 3000 1.224 -
# Vimla 5. Sharma 2500 1020 2,500 1.020
i Saiir Nurcshehandra Jain 2,500 1.020 2,500 1.020
10 snehprabha Agarwal 2,500 L20 2,500 1,020
11 Purshottamlal Jhunhunwala 2,450 1000 - -
12 L Hungta HLF - - 2,000 (816
13 Verma Shyam Sunder - - 1 Bif 0.745
Motes

Ls




EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN IN FORM MGT-9
| Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014|
E Sharcholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl Shareholder's Name Sharcholding at the beginning of the vear Cumulative Sharcholding during the year Reason
No (01.04.2018 10 31.03.2019)
N of Shares % of total Shares of No. of Shares % of otal Shares of
the company the company
Directors
I Mr. Ramu S, Beora * Movement
At the begnning of the year 34, 500 14 12 34,500 14.062 during the
A the end of the vear 34,50M) 14.082 54,500 14.082 year- Nil
2 Mrs Grace B Deora Movemen!
AL the heginning of the year 3,000 14.6%4 36, (Hin 14694 during the
At the end of the vear 36 000 14664 36,000 14694 vear - Nil
A Mr. Mahabirprasad 8. Deoru Movement
Arthe beginning of the year - - c . during the
Q At the end of the vear . - - - wear- Nil
4 Mr. Shyam 8. Sharma Movement
At the begmning of the year - - = : cluring the
Atthe end of the year . . - . vear - Nil
5 Mr. suml & hunjhunwala Movernent
At the beginning of the year - - s - dunng the
Ar the end of the vear - - 3 ‘ vear - Nil
i Mr. tiinsh Kumar Pangalia Movement
Ar the beginming of the year . - s = cluring the
AL the end of the year 2 2 . % vear - Nil
T Mr. Kutesh | Deroa Movement
M the heginning of the year . - A, 100 14694  dunng the
Ax the end of the vear - - 30 10 14 694  vear - Nil

Key Managerial Personnel

' I Me, Ramu 5 Deom ® Movemenl
At the beginning of the year 34,500 14.082 34,500 1i08z  dunng the

An the end of the vear 34,500 14.082 34,500 Ligsz  vear-Nil
2 Mr. Puran |, Parmar Movement
At the beginning of the year - . . - during the

A1 the enel ol the vear - - : . year - Nil
§ Mr. Bharat 1. (rangani Miwvement
A1 the beginning of the vear . - - - dluring the

M the end of the year . . - E year - Nil

Nules

[ * Mr Ramu s Deora, Birector & CEO has been included i the list of Directors as well as KMP
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN IN FORM MGT-9
| Pursnant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies {Management and Administration) Rules, 2014
v INDEBTEDNESS

Indebledness of the Company including mterest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment: Amount in Rs,
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans Diepaosits Total Indebtness
iExcluding deposits)
Indebiedness at the beginning of the financial year (As on 01.04.2018)
i Principal Amount 1,54,05,426 75,060,000 - 2605326
i Imterest due but not paid . = F
i Interest acerued but aol due = - . .
Tokal {3+ @i +iii) [,55,05.3206 75,00, (0 - 2.24.05326
Change in Indebtedness during the financial vear
i Additicin 4,04, BY 956 10, 12,00, 00 . 14, 16 B9 536
i Reduction {repayment) 2.08,54 635 857,00, 000 - 10,65,54 645
Ner Change 1,96 36,400 1.55.00, 000 . 351,506,301
Indebtedness at the end of the financial vear (As on $1.03.2019)
a i Principal Amounl 34941627 230,00, 000 - 57941627
i Interest due but not i - 204,053 . 2.04,653%
i Interest acerned bun not due - ; ; :
Total (i +ii +iii) 34941627 2,32,04 653 - 5,81 46,2801
vl REMUNERATION OF INRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL Amount in Ks.
Al farticulars of Remuneration {A) Managing Directors, Whole-  (B) Other Directors (C) Key Managerial Personng]
N time Dircetors and |/ or Manager CEQ 5 CFO

1 Goross Salary (excluding Commission)
(a1 Saliry us per privisions contained in : - :
section 17{1) of the Income-tax Act,

1961

(b} Value of perquisites us 17(2) of the - . . . e
Income-tax Act, 1961

{e) Profiv in livw of salary uis 17(2) of - : . : 5

the Income-tux Act, 1561
Q 2 Stk Options . . . . -
3 Sweal Equity . . r . .

4 Commission

- us % of profit

- others specify. - . -
5 Uthers - Emplover contribution 1o x - - 5
provident and other funds
Total (A) - . + 3
Ceilingas per the Companies Act, 2013 . . . =

VIT PENALTIES | PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES (under the Companies Act, 2013)
Mo penalties - punishment | compounding of offences were under Companies Act, 2013,

On behalt of the Board of Directors

W

srace B Deon Ramu 5. Drearn
Director director & CEO
LHEN: 00312080 LHN: 00312304

Ut




Triochem Products Limited

Annual Report 2018 - 2019 Annexure (E) to Board's Report
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHNAGE EXENINGS AND OUTGO
|Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014
A CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
a Energy conservalions measures taken
The manutacturing units of the Company have continued their efforts to reduce the energy consumption. Specific energy consumption and

absolute wnts consumption are wacked ona real tme basts at individual factory | block level and consolidated at Supply Chain Level. This
is bemng done with the help of Encrgy Management System at plant

Some of the key measures taken in all the plants are as below;
1 Work done in improvement in shalt mechanies for reducing motor power
2 Presence sensors and motion sensors used in cabins
4 Pressure based pumping system used for utilities
& Arresting wir leskage and optimization of air pressure netwiork
3 Hy controlling process parameters anil changing process pipe ling system
b Improvisation and continuous monitoring of Power Factor
Q h Utilising alternate sources of energy

1 Sadar energy: Nil
2 Wind energy. Nil

¢ The capital investment on energy conservation equipment

Adelitional investments and proposals being implemented for Encrgy: Nil
The Company s engaged in the continuous review of energy costs, reduction in energy generation cost through improved operational and
manfenance practices. We have been able 1o maintain the power factor near of unity and therchy waailing the rebate on electricity charges

d Impact ol above measures on consumption of energy

Impact of the above measure lor the reduction of enengy consumption anid consequent impact on the cost of production of the goods: it is
dliflicult 1o assess the detinite impact of the measure us the towal energy cost forms a small constituent of the overall production costs.

¢ Power & fuel consumption

Sl Partculaes 2004 - 2019 2017 -2018
j:_’ Amount in Ks. Amount in K,
I Flectricity
. Purchase « Units 5,249,004 585,052
Purchase - Amount 50,171,492 51,1289
Rate | Vnit 0.46 H.74

Crwn Generation through =

* Mot Applicible, Since the Company docs not have any Diesel Generator ar Stem Turbine Generator

Furnace CHl

Purchase - Litre 31,473 B, 266
lPurchise - Amount 10,15, 281 21 44,859
Rate | Litre 32.20 26.71
4 Consumplion per unil of products Stunchirds
Electricity
Hulk Tirug, Al'ls 5527 2502 Not Applicable
Furpace Ol
Bulk Drug, Al'ts 713 1049 Kot Applicable

Reason for variation =*

= 0t is not leasible 1o matntain product category-wise encrgy consumption datis, Since we manufacture a large bulk drugs having
_"'".-._

Les



Annual Report 2018 - 2019 Annexure (E) to Board's Report
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHNAGE EXRNINGS AND OUTGO
[Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
B TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
a The efforts made by the Company towards technology absorption

The loeus of Kesearch & Technology function continues to be in butlding technological self-reliance by promoting in house research,
tnrrovation and creativity to design, develop and upgrade its products pipeline continuously 10 support achicving short, medium: and long-
termbusiness goals of the Company. The entire products portfolio ts based on in-house technology developed by internal scientists
without suppornt from external partners in the form of technology, collaboration licensing. The nature of activities carried out by Research
& Technology functional the Company are as [ollows

I Upgrachation of existing products with value added leatures 1o create product differentiation 1o retain marker shacee

2 Conunuous velue generation through formulation re-engineenng, sourcing efficiency, process optimization, new raw matenal search,
new manulacturing techmigues, vendor eolliboration to enhance profiability.

4 Support sustainability initatives. of the company by undertaking joint projects with plant 1o reduce eycle time, energy consumption,
water copsumption and waste generaiion

i Development of laboratory simulation technsques to support products validation ander different geographical dimate and usage

Q practices

5 Technical service and support related to customers for product scale up and standardization on costomer lines:

fi Development of test methods for Plant QC that help speed up incoming raw material testing and approval

T Continues benchmarking of products against national international competition.

B Supporn technical capability building across organizstion through in-house seminars, technical training, ele.

O Support in terms of weehnolgical due dillgence to Rilfil company’s growth strategy through acquisition

b The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution

| Fresh witer consumption reduced and ETP load minimized
2 Emission in the i is negligible and maintains ol] emission parameters
4 Heduee fresh witer consumption,
¢ In case of imported technology (import during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)
1Nt Applicable

d The expenditure incurred on Research and Development

S5 Particubirs 20182019 217 - 2018
Kk Amonnt in Hs Amaunt in Bs.
. I Capital . .
- 2 Recurring T7.502 0,058
4 Tol 77502 058

« FOREIGN EXCHNAGE EXENINGS AND OUTGO

S Parculars 2018 - 2019 2017 - 2018

Ny Amount in Ks. Amint in Ba
I Farning - Hxpon 63,541,943 B3,13 93K
2 Dt - lmpor 771,03, 811 26,5534 449
4 Outpo « Bank Charpes 17370 21861

Oin behall of Board of Dircctors

Gl T

(rrace K. Deora Ramu 5 Dera
Director Dhrector & CEO
LHN: (312080 L3N 00312369

May, 20149
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

\We have audited the Financial Statements of TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity
ﬁ and Statement of Cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “ Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view, in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2019, and its profit including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements Section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with ethical requirements that are
™ relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the
' Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Financial Statemants of the current period These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We
have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Other Information

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information inciuded in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditors’' report
thereon.




Kanu Doshi Associates LLP Continuation Sheet

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
EXpress any form of assurance conciusion inereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company's management and the Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, the financial performance,
the changes in equity and the cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principies generally accepied in india, including the indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevan! to the preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Management and the Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing.
as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concem basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a maierial missiatement when it exists. Misstalements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures resnongive to thoge rcke and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ong

Sk
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resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of intemal controi.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accouniing esiimaies and relaied disciosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncerainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's reporl to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
cunciusions are based on the audii evidence oblained up to lhe date of our auditor's repoil.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
pianned scope and timing of the audii and significant audi findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
maiters thai were of most significance in the audit of the Financiai Statemenis of ihe cumrent
penod and are therefore the key audit matters. We descnbe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of india in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

=2
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2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid Financial Statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid Financiai Statements have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow

Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account
maintainad for the numose of preparation of the Financial Statameants

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Account) Rules, 2014.

&) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2019 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we repor that none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 .

fi With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reparting of the Company and the operating effecliveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure B" and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Financial Statements (Refer Note No.23(a) to the ind As Financial
Statement).

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivatives contracts.

S5
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRMN. No. 104746\W/W100086

. W)

Kunal Vakharia
Fariner
Membership no. 148916

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2019
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i

vi.

vil.

ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in
our Report of even date on the accounts of TRICOHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED for the year
ended March 31, 2019

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management
according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of
three years, which in our option, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its Assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the
fixed assets has been physically verified by the management during the year and
discrenancies noticed hetween the hook records and physical inventorias were not
material and have been properly dealt with in the accounts.

(¢) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties
are held in the name of the company

During the year the inventories have been physically verified by the management.
In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. The discrenancies
noticed on physical verification of inventories as compared to the book records
have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

As informed to us, the Company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, and limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Hence sub clauses (a) to (c) of
clause 3{ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, has not made investments, has not
provided any guarantees and security to directors or to any other parties during the
year. Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has nat accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under to the
extent notified and therefore clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cos! records
under sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, for any of the producis of the
Company. Therefore clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable.

{a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authonties
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Duiy of Cusiom, Duiy of Excise, Cess, Goods & Services
Tax and any other material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed arrears of statutory dues
were outstanding as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.
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{b) As informed to us, there are no disputed amounts payable in respect of Income
Tax, Saies Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Custom Duty, Cess and any other
material statutory dues in arrears, as at March 31, 2019 except the disputed
statutory dues aggregating Rs. 3.21 lakhs pending before the appropriate

authorities which are as under:

”éi‘“ﬁa‘r’n?aﬁﬁé' Nature of the |  Forum where the duesis | Rsinlakhs
No. Statute dues , pending

™1 [ The Income Tax | Income Tax _|income Tax Appellate Tribunal 3.2

. Act, 1961 (ALY 1992-1993) |

Total W T 321

vii.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and information and

expianation given io us, ihe Company has noi defauiied in repayment of dues io
banks during the year. The Company has not taken any loan or borrowings from
government financial institutions and has not issue debentures during the year.

ix. The Company has not raised any money by way of public issue/ further offer
(including debt instruments) and through term loans during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

X. Based upon the audit procedure performed and information and explanation given
by the management, we repori that no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the

year.

xi, The Company has not paid or provided for manageral remuneration during the
year. Accordingly .clause 3 (xi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
applicable to Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the QOrder is not
applicable to the Company.

xiii. According te the information and explanation given to us, and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by
the indian accouniing slandards.(ind A3 -24 "Relaled Paily Disciosuies " specified
under Section 133 of the Act.)

ix. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly converible debentures during the year under audit
Accordingly, clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xiv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entersd into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him . Accordingly ,clause 3{xiv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.
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XV, The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of india Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) of the Order is nol appiicabie {o
the Company.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No: 104746W/W100096

Ko

Kunal Vakharia
Farner
Membership No: 148916

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2019

5%



Kanu Doshi Associates LLP Continuation Sheet

ANNEXURE B TO THE AUDITORS® REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) of '‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Intemmal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 [“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TRIOCHEM

of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the limely preparation of relable flinancial infurmalion, as reguired under ihe
Companies Act 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance MNote on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporing (the
“Guidance MNote") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operatad effectively in all material resnects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the intermal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Cur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evalualing the design and
operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
seleciad depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Financial Statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain lo the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faidy reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company, (2) provide reasonabie assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls owver financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial contrals system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial
reporting critera established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm registration No. 104746W/W100036

K]

Kunal Vakharia
Parner
Mambershin Mo 148015

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2019
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
{CIN: L24249MH1972PLCO15544)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2019

[Rs. in Lakhs]
| Particulars Note No. As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
ASSETS
| {17 Nen - Current Assets
{ &) Property, plant and equipment i 11378 13296
{ b} Investment property 4 252 8.96
| [ ¢ ) Other intangible assets 5 . 02
{d ) Finuncial assets
(i1 Cther financlal assets fi 7.4a2 74
{ & ) Uither non - current assels 7 115 1547
Total Non Current Assets 130,77 184,94
{4} Current Assels
[ @) Inventories 8 957 44 82153
i b} Financial assets
i) Trade receivables 4 33301 -
it Cash and cash equivalents 10 24.90 %191
i) Cther linancial assets 11 0.54 1156
(¢ ) Oher tox sssets 12 836 -
() Other current asscls 13 6007 793
Total Current Assets 1,384.32 994.93
TOTAL ASSETS 1,515.09 1,179.87
EQUITY ANT? LIAHILITIES
EQUITY
i { # ) Eepuiry share capital 14 24.50 24.50
[ by Uither equity 15 B53.07 778,70
Tostal Equity B77.57 B03.26
LIABILITIES
{1 ) Non Current Liabilities
{4} Delerred wx liahdites (Net) 1] 11.8% 1292
Total Non- Current Linbilities 11.83 12.92
{2} Currem Lizhilites
i o) Finanel bubilines
1) Borrowings 17 57942 2ERN5
i) Trace payables i8 4413 1%
i b Other financial liahilities 15 205 -
(b} Oither current liabilines 20 1.234 (54
{ ¢ ) Provisions | K85 1622
() Current tax Habilities iz . 40,57
Taial Current Liabilities 525.69 363.69
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,515.09 1,179.87
Summary of significant accounting policies £
Itie accomparying notes are an integral pan of the financial staiements
As per our report of even date aftached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Acconntants
Firm Registration No.: 104746W/W100096
e PRy Mo M L
f": 'I.f o -1 e b L N Normses, s
Runal Vakharia \57_ h’xﬂ""" JE Grace R Deora Puran Parmar
Partner B Director (DIN: 00312080) Chief Finaneial Officer

Membership No: 148916

Mace: Mumbai
Dated: 2Bth May, 2019

O e
M”.Dm#________,.-

Director (DIN: 00312369)
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
(CIN; L24249MH1972PLCO15544)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2019

| Ks. in Lakhs|
Particulars Note No. 2018-2019 2017-2018
1 Revenue [Tom uperations 24 123547 355245
0 Other income 25 5.52 4102
U1 Total ncome (1411) 1,240.99 3,593.47
IV Expenses
Cost of material consumed 2 1,09978 125241
Parchase for stock-in-trade 7 55,60 623,35
Changes in inventarics of finished goods. work-in-progress 28 (311.83) 2,23
Excise duty on sale of goods ) - 5340
Emnpluyes benefit expenses 30 7190 7309
Fiminee cosls 3 4546 84
Deprectation and amortization expenses 52 2054 475
Other expenses 33 15559 LG8 RO
Total expenses {1V} 1,157 .04 3536459
V. Profit before exceptional items and tax (111-IV) 103,95 356,98
¥ add: Excepuional llems . .
VIl Prafit before wx (V4 V1) 103.95 35698
VIIT  Less: Tax expense
(1) Current tax
ol Crirrent vear 3170 106,25
ol Earbier years {(195) {1549
12y Deferred tax
ol Current vear (1.10) 314
Total tax expense (VL) 29.65 10147
X Profit after ax (VY1) A 7450 25551
X Other comprehensive income
afiy feems that will be reclussified to profin or loss -
adin) Income iy refating o ilems that will -be reclassified o profi or loss . .
bt} Deeams that will not be reclissified o profit or loss 002 (0.38)
biii} Income Lax relating to itemes that will not be reclassified W profit or oss {0-01) 0.10
Tatal athér comprehensive income for the year ] 001 {0.28)
Xl Total comprehensive income for the year (IX+X) (A+E) Ta 31 255.43
Earming per equity share (Face value of Rs 10/ cagh) 34
(1} Basec fin B,y 33 104,29
(&) Dilurieed (in Hs ) MEAS 104 29
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The acoompanyving notes sre sn integral part of the financlal statemenis
As per our report of even date altached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Noo: 104 T40W W 100096

Henh

Kunal Yakhara
Partner
Membership No.: 148916

Flage: Mumbai
Dated; 28th May, 2019

S L

=

For and on behall of Board of Directors.

foca BB U Lo

Puran Parmar
Chief Financial Officer

Grace R. Deora

Director (DIN: 003 12080)

—-"’""_’J
W

or (DIN: D312369)




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

(CIN: L24249MH1972PLCO15544)
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2019

[Rs. in Lakhs]
2018-2019 2017-2018
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax and Extraordinary [tems 103.95 356,98
Adjustment for;
leprecation | Amortisation 20,34 73
Interest Income {266} (L77)
fteclassification of remeasurement of emploves benelin 0.2 {1.38)
Interest Expenses 45.46 3459
Met guin on sale af Assel [T -
Investment Expenses .08 (.09
Sundry halince Off 138 .
Sundry halance written hack (Net) - (f.04)
63,76 57.22
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 167.71 414.20
ADIUSTMENTS FOR WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES -
Increase Leoreass in Asscis 5408 3642
Changes m lnveniones (134.91) (603,02}
Increase Decrease Trade Recervable {333.01) 244.53
Inerease iecrease in other linancial and non-finuncial assets {007 .
Inerease Thecrvase Trade payabies (3783} (B34
Incresse/Tiécreass in other finuncial and non-financial liahilities 205 .
Increase Decrease in Lighilities .45 [Th4H)
Changes in Provision (7AT) .84
(456.71) (202 25)
Cash Generated from Operations {2RG9.00) 21155
Uireet taes paid | (refund) (B5.6H) (7.0
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (374.06H) 14452
B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase o Fixed Assets including Capital Work in Progress {095 (2.8%)
Sales of Fixed Assers 015 -
Imvestment Expenses (008} (LRI
Interest Receiverd 268 1.84
1L.76 {1.08)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITY 1.76 {105}
) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Mt (Decreass )| Ingrease in Shon Term Borrowangs A51.57 (5749
[nterest Makd {45.40) {34549
305,91 (42.08)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITY 30591 T
MET CHANGES IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS(A+B+C) iﬁ'?.ﬂ'l! 51.76
OPENING BALANCE OF CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 9191 HE1S
CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 2450 9151
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
(CIN: L24249MH1972PLCO15544)
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 515T MARCH 2019

[Rs. in Lakhs]
Nofes
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents
| Cashoand Cash Equivalents Includes: (Refer Note No 1)
CASH 1N HAND 0,55 108
HALANCE WITH SCHEDULED BANES
- In Lurrent Aceotnt 2595 G0 83
24.90 9191

2 Trevious year fgures have been regrouped and rearmanged wherever considered necessary m make them comparable with those of the current year.

As per our report of even date attached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Firm Hegistration No.: 104 T406W/W 1096 f

. LM\IQQ(\FE&
Kunal Vakharis Grace K. Deora Puran Parmar
Partner Director (DIN: 003120803 Chief Financial Officer

Membership No.: 148916

P
Ramu 5. Deora

Direetor (DIN: 0051 236%9)

Mace: Mumbai
Dated: 26th May, 2019
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TRIOCHEM FRODCUTS LIMITED
{CIN: L24249MH1972PLCO15544)

STATEMENT ©OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2019

[Rs. in Lakhs]
A Equity Share Capital
Particulars No. of Shares Amount
Halance at at 3151 March, 2017 (Face Value of Rs. 10/~ each) 2,45,000 24.50
U bmges i eiquiny share capital during the year = %
Halunce at at 315t March, 2018 2,45 ,000 2450
| Chinges in egquity share capital during the year -
| Balance at at 31st March, 2019 2,45,000 24.50
H. Other Equity
[Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other items of Other Total
| Capital Reserve | General Reserves Retained comprehensive
i Earnings Remeasurement of
| net defined benefit
plans
Halunce af at 315t March, 2017 0.04 177.86 345.25 0.38 523.53
Profic for the year . - 253.31 - 255.51
Remeanrements of Defined Benchr Phin - . - {(1.28) {0.24)
Fair Value effect of Investiments of shares - - *
Halance at at 31st March, 2018 0.04 177.86 600.76 010 TTR.76
Profit for the vear T4.30 TaA0
Femeaurements of Defined Benefit Plan X1} {1111
Fair Yalue clfect of Investments of shares -
Balance at at 31st March, 2019 0.04 177.86 675.06 0.11 B53.07

As per our report of even date attached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates LLF

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 104 T46W W100096

o)

Kumsal Vakharia
Partner
Membership No.: 148916

Place: Mumbai
Drated: 28th May, 2019

For und on behalf of Board of Directors

%ﬁlﬁum L?‘ﬁ\dtrm-q—

Grace R, Deora Puran Parmar
Director (DIN: 00312080) Chief Financial Officer

Rammu J
Director (DIN: 00312369)
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

Company overview

Trinchem Products Limited (the "Company”) is an existing public imited company incorporated on 17011972 under the provisions of the Indian
Companies Act, 1956 and deemed to exist within the purview of the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office at 4th Floor, Sambavi
Chamber, Sir PoM. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001 It has been engaged primarily in the business of manufaciurer and exporter of pharmaceuticals
products. APs and chemicals. The equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited (*BSE"). The financial statements are presented in
Indian Rupee (4

Significant accounting policics
This nete provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the vears presented, unless otherwise stazed.

A Basis of preparation of financial statement

The finencial starements Complies in all matenal aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Ageounning Standards) Rales, 2015 as amended and norified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”) and other relevant
provisivons of the A and other accounting principles generally accepted in India

Fhe financial stapements were authonzed forissue by the Company's Board of Directors on 2Hth May, 2019,

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR), which s also the functional currency. All the amounts have been rounded
vitf o the nearest Likhs, unless atherwdse indicated.

B Use ol estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial sttements requires m'ai.rmgl:mmt 1o make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the application of
accuunting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, Habilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates,
Contingous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future gvents that are bellieved o be reasonable. Revisions 1o accounting estimates are recognised prospectively,

.  Cuwrrent and non-current classification

All assers and liabilities have been classified a5 current or non-current as per the Company's operating cyvele and other criteria set out in the
Sehedule 1 to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
thetr realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained irs operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current - non-
current classthication of asscts and labilities,

D Foreign currency translation

i Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primiry econgmic environment in
which the Company operates (‘the functional curreney’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is
Company's functional and presentagion currency.

ii Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are transbated into the funcrional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gams and losses resulting from the settlement of such rransactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
lahilives denomsnared 0 foreign currencies at vear end exchange raes are generally recognised in profic or loss. All the foreign
extchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of Profit and Loss on a net hasis within other expenses or other income 15
applicable

E  Property, plant and equipment

i Freehold fand is carrled at historical cost including expenditure thar is directly artributable ro the acquisition of the land.

ii All other items of prioperty, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost Includes expenditure that s
directly antributible ti the acquisition of the items,

iii Subsequent costs are included in the asser’s carrying amount or recognised a8 a separale asset, as appropriate, only when it s probable
that future economic benefits assoctated with the iem will Bow 1o the company and the cost of the fiem can be measured relably. The
caerving amount of any component accounted for 15 a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and mainienance
are charged 1o profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred,

iv Cost of Capital Work in Progress ('CWIP') comprises amount paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as
ach halunce sheer date and construction expenditures, other expenditures necessary for the purpose of preparing the CWIF for it
sty use and borrowing cost incureed before the qualifving asset is ready for intended use. CWIP is not depreg '
Ny ant asset is complered and ready foris intended use.
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

v Bepreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
(i) Fixed assets are stated a1 cost less accumulated depreciation.
(h) Depredation Is provided on g written down value method at the rates and manncr as prescribed under Schedule 11 1o the
Companies Act, 2003, The depredation charge for each period is recognised in the Seatement of Profit and Loss, unless it is included in
the carrying amount of any other asset. The useful life, residual value and the deprediaion method are reviewed ateast a1 each
financial year end. 1f the expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for prospectively as a change in
perounting estimale

vi Tangihle assets which are not ready for their intended wse on reporting date are carried as capital work-in-progress,

vii The residual values are nor more than 5% of the original cost of the asset
AR assel’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount s grearer than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Estimated useful lives, residual values and depreclation methods are reviewed annually, taking into account commercial and
technalogical ohsolescence as well as normal wear and tesr and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carmving amount. These are included in profit or loss within
nther expenses ar other income as applicable

Investment Property

Propery that i held for long-tesm rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not oceupied by the Company, is classified as
Investment property. Investment property is measared indtially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
cists, Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 1o the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable thar future economic benefits associared
with the cxpeaditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs ane
expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced pan is derecognised
Inwestment properties (except freehold land) are depreciated wsing the Writen down value method over their extimated useful lives at the
rates prescabed under Schedule [ of the Companies Act 2013

Intangible assets

b An intangible asset shall be recognised if, and only if () it is probable that the expected fatore economic benefits thar are attributable
1o the asser will Bow 1o the Company and (b} the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

i Computer soltware I8 capitalised where it is expeered o provide furure enduring economic benefits, Capitalisation costs include
licence fees and costs of implementation | system Integration services. The costs are capitalised in the year in which the relevant
software is implemented for use. The same is amortised over a pernd of 3 vears on straight-line method

Borrowing Cost

i Borrowings arc initially recognised ar fair value, ner of wransaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured a1 amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the
peringd of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees pald on the establishmenr of loan facilities are recognised as
tranzaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable thar some or all of the facility will be doawn down. In this case, the fee s
deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there Is no evidence that it is probable thar some or all of the facilioy will be drawn
diswn, the fee is capitalised as @ prepayment for liguidity services and amortised over the period of the Bcility to which it relates,

il Borrowings are classificd as cureent financial liabilives unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
forar least 12 months aher the reporting period. Where there is a breach of o materal provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or
before the end of the reporting peniod with the effect thar the lability becomes pavable on demand on the reporting date;, the entity
does not chassity the Hability as current. if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial
statements for issue, not o demend payment as a consequence of the breach,

Income tax, deferred tax and dividend distribution tax

The Intome rax expense e credit for the vear is the tax pavable on the corrent vear's mxable income based an the applicable income tix rate
adjusted by chinges in deferred tx assers and labilives arributable wo temporary differences and to unused ix losses,

Corrent and deferred ax s recognised in the profic and loss except 1o the extent it relates o items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in equity or other comprehensive income respectively.

i Current income tax

Current tix charge is based on taable profit for the year. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are

d or substantively enacted, ar the reporting date where the Company operates and generates table in:nm: \iﬂn:w_'ml:m
Iy cvaluates positions taken in tix returns with respect o situations in which applicable tax

Mon 1t establishes prowisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid 1o lhefni,luthuﬂtim'

6 é __.'u' %P‘Il




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

Current tax assets and tax labilities are offset when there s a legally enforceable right 1o set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilitics and Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously.

i Deferred tax
Peferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences arising berween the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrving amounts in the finandal statements & the reporting date Deferred tax asscts are recognised o the extent that it i

probable that future taxable income will be avallable against which the deductible temporary differences. unused tax losses,
depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utilised.

Deberred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or lability in o transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the cransaction affects nelther scoounting profit nor taxable profie (tax loss),

Peterred tax assets and Kabilities are measured based on the tax rates thar are expected 1w apply in the perod when the asset is realised
ar the lability is settled, based on tax rutes and tax laws thar have been enacted or substantively enacted by the halance sheet dare

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets s reviewed at cach reporting date and adjusted to refleer changes in probability thar
sufficient toable profits will be avatlable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deterred income tax asscts and liabilities are off-set against each other and the resultant net amount is presented in the Balance Sheet,
if- and onlv when, (a) the Company has a legally entorceable right to set-off the current income tax assets and liabilities, and (b} the
deferred income tax assets and labilities relate to income tax levied by the same tasation authority.

Mimimum Altermate Tax credit is recognised as an asser only when and 1o the exvent there is convineing evidence thar the company will
pay normal ncome tax dunng the specified period: Such asset i reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the
MAT credit asser is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence w the effect that the Company will pay normal
ineome e during the specified period,

] Revenue recognition

Revenue s measured af the fuir value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed us revenue dre inchusive of excise dury
and net of returns, trade discount taxes and amounts collected on behall of thind parties. The Company recognises revenue as under:

I Sales
(i} The Company recognizes revenue from sale of goods when:
{a) The significant risks and rewards of ownership in the goods are transferred 1o the buyer as per the woms of the contract, which
cofncides with the delivery of goods.
(B} The Company retains neither continuing managenal involvement to the degree usually associated with the ownership nor effective
contral ovier the goods sold
(¢} The amount of revenue can be reliably measured
() Ieis probable thar futre economic benefits assoctited with the ransaction will fow to the Company.
() The cost incurreed or w be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliahly,
(1) The: company bases its estimates on historical results, aking into consideration the tvpe of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.
Etfectve April 1. 2008, the Compiny has applicd Ind A5 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether,
how much and when revenue §s 1o be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Coniracts. The
Company has adopred Ind A5 115 using the cumulative effect method. The effect of initiully applving this standard is recogrsed at the
dare of inittal applicavion (te. Aprl 1, 2018) There are no material impact on revenue recogintion by applying this stndard

Il Other income

(i) Interest income

Interest inceme from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective inferest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cish receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrving amount of &
financial asscr. When cilculating the effective interest rate, the group estimates the expected cash Rows by considering all the
contractual terms of the Anancial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar oprions) but does nor consider the
expected credit losses

(ity Dividends
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss onlv when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable thar the economic
benefits wssociated with the dividend will Bow o the group, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably

ili) Export benefits

et




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

E  loventories valuation

i Raw materials, components, siores & spares, packing muterial, semi-finished goods & finished goods are valued ar lower of cost and net
realisable value.

il Cost of Riw Materdals, components, stores & spares and packing material is arrived at Weighted Average Cost and Cost of semi-finished
wond and finshed good comprises, cew marerials, direer labour, other direct coses and refated production overheads,

i Scrap & valued at net realisable yalue,

iv Due allowances are made in respect of slow moving, non-moving and obsolewe inventories based on estimate made by the
Management,

L Impairment of Assets

Intangible assees that have an indefinite uscful life are not subject o amortization and are tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in arcomstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever evenss or
changes in circumstances indieate that the carrving amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
winch thie assets carrving amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s i value less costs of
disprsiel ol value in use. For the purposes of dssessing impairment, assets e grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiahie cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units), Non-
financial asscts thae suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversil of the impairment at the end of each reponting period.

M Fair Value Measurement
The Company measunes certain Anancial instruments at fir value at cach balance sheet date. Fair valoe is the price that would be received

sell an asset or padd 1o transder a lability in an orderly transaction berween market participants at the measurement date. The fir value
measurement s based on the presumption that the ransaction 1 sell the asset or transfer the lability takes place either:

- In the principal market (or the asset or Hability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageoos market for the asset o liahiliy
The principal or the most advintageous market must be accessible by the Company, The fair value of an asset or 4 lighility &5 measured
using the assumptions that mirket participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market partcipants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of & non-financial asset takes into account 3 market pamicipant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset inits highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
usg

The Company uses valuation technigues thar are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient dita are available
measure fair value, maamiging the use of relevant observible inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
higrarchy, described as follows, hased on the lowest level input that is significant o the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or labilites in active markets
Level 20 Significant inputs to the fair vilue measurement are directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 significant inputs o the fur vidue measurement are unobservable

For assers and Habilities that are recognised in the financial statements onoa recareing basis, the Company determines whether transfors
bave occurred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-issessing categorization (based on the lowaest level inpur that is sigmficant 1o the
L value measurement as 2 whole) e the end of cach reporting pericd

For the purpose of far value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets & liabilities on the basis of rhe nature,
characteristies and the risks of the wsset or Habilioy and the level af the fir vilue hierarchy as explained dhove.

N Financial Instrument
a  Recognition, classification and presentation
The fimancial mstruments are recognised in the balance sheet when the company becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
The Company determines the classificanen of 4is financial instruments at initial recognition

[he Company classifics ity nancial assets in the following categories: a) those o be measured subsequently at fair value (either
__ pther :.r:mpn_hq..nmw income, or lhmugh nmill or kﬁsj md hj Ihn&e o be measured ar amortized cost The classification




TRIOCHEM FRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

Financial assets and |ibidities arising from different transactions are off-set against cach other and the resultant net amount is
presented in the hatance sheet, if and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off the related recognised
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and senle the liabilities simultaneously,

b Measurement

{4) Initial measurement
A inital recognition, the Company measures financial instruments an s fair value plus, in the case of a financial asser not a fair vabue
through profit or loss, transaction costs thar are directly anrbutable to the acquition of the financhl assets. Otherwise ransaction costs
are expensed o the starement of profic and loss.

(B) Subsequent measurement - financial assets
The subseguent measurement of the financial sssets depends on their classification as follows:

(i) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash fluws where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (‘FIR') method (if the impact of discounting / any transaction costs is
stgnilicant). Interest fncome from these financial assets is incleded in finance income.

{ii) Financial asscts at fair value through other comprehensive income {'FVTOCI")

Eguity investments which are not held for trading and for which the Company has elected to present the change in the fuir value in
other comprehensive income and debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash Rows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets” cash fow represent solely payment of princpal and interest, are measured it FYTOC]

The changes in fair value are taken through OCL except for the impairment, interest (basis EIR method), dividend and foreign
exchange differences which are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
When the fnancial asset i derecognized, the related sccumulated Rir value adjustments in OCT as e the date of derecognition dre

reclassified from equity and recognised in the stacement of profit and Joss, However, there ts no subsequent reclassification of fair value
wiins and losses 1o statement of profit and loss in case of equity instruments

(iif) Financial assets at fair value throough profit or loss (‘FVTPL')

All equity instruments and financial asscts that do not meet the riteria for amorized cost or FVTOC! are measared an falr value
through profit or loss, Interest (hasis EIR method) and dividend income from FYTPL s recognised in the statement of profic and loss
within finance income |/ finance costs separately from the other gainslosses arising from changes in the fair value.

Impairment

The company assesses on a lorward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried ar amormized cost and debw
instrument carried ar FYTOCE The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been o significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. IF credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve month ECL is used 1o provide for impalrment
linss, otherwise [Hetime ECL Is used

However, only i case of rade receivables, the company applies the simplified approach which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognized from initial recognition of the receivables,

() Subsequent mensurement - financial liabilities
Chther financial liabilities are initially recognised ar fair value less any directly anribusible transacrion costs. They are subsequently
measured atamortized cost using the EIR method (if the impact of discounting - any transaction casts bs significant)

¢ Derecognition

The financtal iabilitics are de-recognised from the balance sheet when the under-lving obligations are extinguished, discharged, lapsed,
cancelled, expires or legally released, The financial assers are de-recognised from the balance sheer when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial asscts have expired, or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and
rewieds of ownership, A financial Instrument is any contrace that gives rise to 4 financial asset of one entity and a financial lability or
cuuity instrument of another entity

00 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original maturitics of
three months or less thar are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

. averdraft shown within



TRICGCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes i the financial statemients for the yvear ended 31 March, 2019

P Investments
Figuity investments are mewsured at fur value, with value changes recognised in Other Comprehensive Income, except for those mutual fund
tor which the Company has elected 1o present the fair value changes in the Stement of Profit and Loss.

) Trade receivables
Prace receivables are recognised initially at their fir value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the efective interest method,
less prrovision for expectied credin loss,

R Trade and other pavables

These amounts represent labilities lor goods and senvices provided o the Company prior (o the end of financial year which are unpaid
Trade and other payables are recognised, initially ar fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate
methixl

8  Provisions, contingent liabilitics and contingent assets
i Provisions:

A provision is recognized. when company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is probable
thar an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required  sentle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be mide for the amount of obligation. The expense relating to the provision is presented in the profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

I the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using 4 current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriste, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting ts used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as @ finance cost,

Contingent Liahility

=

A connngent lability is o possible ohligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
nccurrence of one or more uncertadn future events beyond the control of the Company or @ present obligation that is not recognized
heciuse it is not prohable that an outflow of resources will be required o setle the obligaton. A contingent liahility also drises in
extremely rare cises where there s 4 lability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does nit
recognize a contingent lability but discloses its existence in the financial statements,

Conungent habdices, if marerial, are disclosed by way of notes and contingent assets, if any, are disclosed in the notes o financial
STALEMETILS.
iil Contingent Assets
Contingent Assets are disclosed, where an inflow of coonomic benefits is probable.
T Earmings per share

i Basic earnings per share
Basle carnings per share i caléulated by dividing
- the profit ateributable to owners of the Company; and
- by the welghted average number of cguity shares outstanding during the financlal year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity sharcs
ssuee) during the vear

il Diluted carnings per share

Eibuted carnings per share adjust the figures wsed in the determimation of basic carnings per share 10 take into account;
- the alter income tax effect of interest and othier financing costs wssociared wich dilurive potential equity shares; and
- the wetghsed average number of additional eguity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential eguity shares

L Leases

i As q lessee

Leases i which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not trnsferred 1o the company as lessee are chssified as
operanng leases. Payments macde under operating leases (net of any incentives recelved from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basts over the penod of the lease unless the pavments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensaie for the lessor's expected infladonary cost increises,




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial starements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

il As a lessor
Lewse income from operating leases where the Company 18 2 lessor is recognised in income on a straight-Hine basis over the lease werm
unless the receipts are structured o increase in line with expected general inflation 1 compensate for the expecied inflationary cost
increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature,

V¥V Emplovee henefits
i Short-term obligations
Iiabilities for wages, salaries and Jeave encashment including non-monetary henefits that are expected 0 be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respeet of emplovees' services
up to the end of the reporting period und ar¢ measured ar the amounts expected to be paid when the Habilities are sertled. The
liahilities are presented as current employee benedit obligations in the balance sheet.

i (ther long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabitines for earmed leave are not expeeted 1o be settded wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees reader the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in
respedt of services provided by emplovees up 1o the end of the reponting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits
ire discounted using the appropriate market vields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating 1o the terms of
the related obligation, Rememsurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in
profir or loss

The obligations are presented as current labilities in the balance sheet I the entity does not have an unconditional right o defer
settlement for an least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual senlement is expected 1o ocour,

iii Post-employment obligations
The group operares the following post-cmployment schemes:
a Defined benefit gratuity plan:

tratuity and Leave encashment which are defined benefits are accrued hased on actuartal valuation working provided by Independent
acnary. The Contribution i charged to profic ind loss.

The Hability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defingd benefic gratuity plans is the present value of the defined
henedit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fir value of plan. The defined benefit obligation is caleulated annually as
per the repart on independent actuary. The present value of the defined benefir obligation is determined by discounting the esnmated
future cash outflows by reference 10 market vields ar the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms
approximating o the terms of the related obliganion. The net interest cost is calculared by applving the discount rate 1o the ner balance
of the detined benefit obliganon and the tair value of plan asses. This cost is included in emplovee benelit expense in the sttement of
profit and loss Remedsurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions ire
revognised in the perod in which they occur, direetly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the
statement of changes in equity and in the hatance sheet.

b Defined Contribution plan:

Contribution payable 1o recognised provident fund and superannuation scheme which is defined contribution scheme s charged 1o
Stement of Profit & Loss. The eompany has nio further ohligation o the plan bevond its conteibution.

W Cash Flow Stmatement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profic belore tax s adjusied for the elfects of ransactions of 4 non-cash
rature, any deferrals or aceruals of past or future operating cash recelpis or payments and item of income or expenses assoclated with
investing or financing cash Hows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated

X Operating Cycle
Based on the nature of products activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assers and their realisation in cash or
cish etuivadents, the Company has determined s operating cyele as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and labilities a5
current and non current

Y  Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financil statements and notes have been rounded off 1o the nearest Rupees: Lacs {up to mwo decimals), unless
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

[Rs. in Lakhs)
OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
[ Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 |
(Unsecured consider goad, unless other wise specified)
Deposits 752 763
7.32 7.63
OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
[Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 |
(Unsecored consider good, unless other wise specified)
Capital Advance .81 .
Balance with Government Authoritics - 34.74
Abvance recoverable in cash or kind or for value o be received 0,34 .63
1,15 3537
INVENTORIES
[Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 |
Raw Materfal (Refer Note No, 8.1) 465.01 e, 14
Packing Material 106 239
Work-in-Frogress - 3908
Finished Goaods 491 37 | 40350
Stores and Spares - 0.47
957 44 B22.53%
Note No. B.1: Raw Material inventory includes Goods-in-transit Rs. Nil (31st March 2018 Rs.30,70,095/)
THADE RECEIVABLES
| Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
(Unsecured )
Considered Doubiful . -
Considered Good (Refer Nole No. 40) 333.01 -
330
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 |
Halance With Banks
- Din Current account 2395 90.83
Cash on Hand 1195 108
24.90 9141
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
[Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 |
{Unsecured consider good, unless other wise specified)
Imterest Receivahle 0,54 0.56
0.54 0,56
OTHER TAX ASSETS
:_P:lrlil:'ularﬁ As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 I
Advance Tax and Tax Dedocted al Source (Net of Provision for 836
#.30

s




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

[Rs. in Lakhs]

15 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

{Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As al March 31, 2018 |
(Unsecured consider good, unless other wise specified)
Balunee with Central Excise and GST 56.79 04,24
Expaort Duty Draw Back 150 Fdz
Advance 10 suppliers and service providers 0,04 6.85
Addvance recoverable in cash or kind or for value 10 be received 0,88 493
Advinee 1o Gratuity Fund (Refer Note No. 37) 107 0.49
60407 79935
14 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
| Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 |
Authorized Share Capital
2,500,000 Equity shares, Rs. 10/~ par value 25.00 25.00
(31 March 2018: 250,000 equity shares Rs. 10/ each)
25.00 2500
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Shares
2,45 001 Equity shures, Rs 10 par value fully paid up 2450 24.50
(41 March 2018: 2 45,000 equity shares Hs 104~ each)
24.50 24.50
Note No. 14.1; The reconcilution of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period 31-03-2019:
{Particulars As a1 March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
No. of Shares Amount No, of Shares Amount
NMumber of shares at the beginning 2.45,000 24.50 2,45,000 44.50
Addd: Shares ssued during the year . - !
Less  Shares hought back (if any) 2 -, - .
Number of shares at the end 2,45,000 24,50 245,004 24.50

Note No. 14.2: Terms / rights attached to equity shares

(A) The company has only one class of equity shares having 4 par value of Rs. 10+ per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 10 one vote
per shure. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General

Mucting

(H) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be eatitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
dhistributicn ol all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in propoertion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders

Note No. 14.3: The details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the sharcholder As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Number of % held as at Number of % held as at
shares held sharcs held

Mr. Ramu 5 e 34,500 14.08% 34,500 14.08%

Mr. Hajesh K Deors 46,000 14.69% 36, 000 14.69%.

Mr. Rajiv K. Deura 34,270 13.9%% 54,270 15.99%

Ramu M Deera HUEF 27,420 11.19% 27.420 11.19%

Mrs. Grace B Deor 36,000 14.69% 46,000 14.69%

15 OQOTHER EQUITY

{Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2019 As at Hnmhﬂl,zl]]ﬂ_]

Reserves & surplus®

Capial Reserve # (.04 .04

Gicneral Reserves ## 17786 177.86

Reluined earnings 675,06 B0, 76

11 011 10

B53.07 77876

+6




TRIOGCHEM FRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

# Capitul reserve mainly represents amount on capital account

[Rs. in Lakhs]

## General reserve relfects amount transferred from statement of profit and loss in accordance with regulations of the Companies Act, 2013,

* For movement, refer statement of changes in equity
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

16

|N:mc of the sharcholder As at March 31, 2019 A.!at.'ihrch.ﬂl.zmﬂj
Deferred rax liahilities (Net) (Refer Note No. 16.1) 11.83% 12.92
1153 12.92
Note No.: 16,1
Particulars Net balance as| Recognised in || Recognised in | Net balance as
al 1 April 2018 | statement of ol al 31 March
profit and loss 2019
Deferred Tax Liabilities {Assets)
Property, plant and equipment [ Investment Property [ Other 14.74 {0.590y 13.84
Intangihle Assets
Fair Yalue through OC 0.06 - 0.01 0.07
Expenses allowable under income tax on payment basis {1.88) {0.20) {2.08)
12.92 (1.10) .01 1183
Particulars Net balunce as| Recognised in Recognised in | Net balance as
at 1 April 2017 | statement of OCI at 31 March
profit and loss 2018
Deferred Tax Liabilitics(Assels)
Property, plint and equipment | Investment Property | Other 17.18 {2.44) 14.74
Intangible Assets
Fair Value through OCI 0.16 - (.10 0,06
Fxpenses illowable under income tax on payment basis (L.15) (0.75) . {1.88)
16.21 (3.19) (0.10) 12.92
Income tax
The major compunenis of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March, 2019
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31 March, |  ended 31
2019 March, 2018
Profit and Loss:
Current tax - net of reversal of earlier years - Rs 94,551/ Lakhs (31 March 2078 © Rs.1,58,866/- Lakhs) 30.75 | .66
Deferred Tax—- net of reversal of carlier years - Hs. Nil (31 March 2018 : Rs. Nil) {'I-.lﬂ"lII (3.19)
| { 29.65 101.47
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate
[ Particulars For the year For the year
cnded 31 March, | ended 31
2019 March, 2018
[Profit before income tax expense 104,95 356,99
[T at the Indlian x rate @ 27 82% (31 March 2018 @27.55%) 2892 B, 56
Add: liems giving rise to difference in tax in tax
Il'crrndnrnl difference 048 373
(Others 1.20 097
Tax for carlier years (1.9%) {1.59)
l::-ul Tax Expenses 29.65 10147

- ures have been regrouped reclussified, wherever necessary,

T
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes o the financial statemients for the year ended 31 March, 2019

[Hs. in Lakhs]
17 BORROWINGS

'Particulars As al March 31, 2019 As al March 31, 2018 |
Secured (Refer Note No. 17.1)
From Bank
Export Packing Credit 349.42 153.05
Unsecured {Refer Note No. 17.2)
From Director 230.00 75.00

579.42 _ mBOs

Note No. 17.1: The ahove loan from State Bank of India, Banker of the Company, is secured primarily agasinst 1st charge on the Company's
Current Asscis:

Node No, 17.2; The above loan from Director repayable on demand,
18 TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars As al March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 ]
Current

Drues ol micro and small enterprises (Refer Note No. 18.1) . .
Druess ather than micre and small enterprises (Kefer Note No. 1H.1) 34.13 T71.96

™ 3413 7196

Note Noo 18.1: The company has not received information from vendors regarding their status under the Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures relating 1o amounts unpaid as at the year end wgether with interest paid | payable under this
Act heve not been given.

19 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars As al March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 |
Interest Payable on unsceured loan 2.05 ;
2.05 -
200 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 |
Statutory Dues Payahbie 1.24 0.89
1.24 .89
21 PROVISIONS
[Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 |
Pravision [or Emplover Benefits
Fior Leave Encashment {Unfunded) 3.20 &9
@ For Incentive 5,05 13.73
B85 1622
22 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES
[Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As a1 March 31, 2018 |
Provvision for taxation [Net of tax payment) . 46.57
= 46,57
25 a) CONTIGENT LIABILITY #
[ Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 |
1) Disputed Tax Liabilty 321 G5 |

Income Tax Dispule - 438 Disallowance
Inceme Tax Act, 1961 pending with The Appellate Tribunal

3.21 5.21
by COMMITMENTS =
[Particnlars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 |
|} Estimated Amounts of Contract remaining o be exccuted on Capital 243 :
scoount and not provided for :
243 -

o gement does not expect these demands |/ claims to succeed. Claims, where the possibility of outf
cfits is remaote, have not been considered in contingent lability 4 i

18 B\ "




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

[Rs. in Lakhs]
23 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
[ Particulars 2018 - 2019 2017 - 2018 |
Sale of Products (Refer Note No. 24.1) 1,250.81 3,548.57
Oiher Uperating Revenue
Scrap Sales LT .02
Export Incentive 289 3.86
1,235.47 3,552.45

Note No. 24.1: Goods and Service Tax (GST) have been effective from July 1, 2017. Consequently, excse duty, value added tx (VAT), Service
tax ele. have been replaced with GST. Until June 30, 2017, Sale of products’ included the amount of excise duty recovered on sales. With effect
from July 1, 2017, Sale of products’ excludes the amount of GST recovered. Accordingly, revenue from Sale of Products, and Revenue from
nperations lor the year ended March 31, 2018 are not comparable with those of current year. Excise duty on sales amounting to Rs.Nil (31st
March, 208 Fs 53,39 594/ has been included in sales in Smiement of Profit and Loss.

25 OTHER INCOME

[Particulars 2018 - 2019 2017 - 2018 |
Imterest Ineome {Refer Note No. 25.1) 2.66 L7
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.06 -
Miscellancous Receipt 0.0% .
Sundry Bulance Written Back (Net) . 0.04
Excharge Fluctuation Gain (Net) 2.75 30,21
3.52 A
MNote No. 25.1 ¢ Hreak-up of Interest |neomae
Interest income on other deposits 0.63 0.63
Interest on sales tax refund 2.03 L14
2.66 —_— L
26 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Particulars 2018 - 2019 2017 - 2018 |
Raw Material
Inventory al the beginning of the vear H09 .44 406,40
Add: Purchases during the year 94396 dH14.52
1,553.40 285072
Less: Sale of Haw Material - 4.47
Lisss: Inventory ai the end of the year #65.01 09 44
ot of Materials Consumed 1,0B8.39 2,236.81
Packing Material
Inwentory at the beginning of the year 259 1.3
Adid: Purchases during the year 10,06 18.48
1245 19.82
Less: Sade of Packing Materal . 183
Less: Inventory at the end of the vear 1.06 2,39
Cost of Materials Consumed 1139 1560
1,049, 78 2.252.41
27 PURCHASE FOHR STOCK IN TRADE
| Particulars 2018 - 2019 2017 - 2018 |
55.60 623 35
5560 T

+9



TRIOCHEM FRODUCTS LIMITED
Noles to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

[Rs. in Lakhs]
28 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE.
[Farticulars 2018 - 2019 2017 - 2018 |
luventorics at the end of the year
Finished Goods 140.50 166,90
Work In Progress 39.03% 14.86
179.33 — 18176
Inventories at the begi of the
Finishee Goods 491.36 140.50
Work In Progress - 39.03
491.36 179.53%
— OBL. 223
29 EXCISE DUTY ON SALES OF GOODS
[Particulars 2018 - 2019 2017 - 2018 |
Exeise duty on sales (Refer Now No. 24.1) 53.40
= 53.40
0 EMPLOYEE HENEFIT EXPENSES
Particulars 2018 - 2019 2017 - 2018 |
Salaries, Wages and Bonus o 6431
Contribution w Frovident and other fund 4.80 5.03
Stafl Wellure Expenses 3.06 375
71.90 TH09
31 FINANCE COST
Particulars 2018 - 2019 2017 - 2018 |
Interest Expense on Shor Term Bank Borrowing 3.56 9.45
Imterest Expense on Income Tax Fayment - el
Interest Expense on Loan from Director 4150 25.15
4546 3848
32 DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
[Particulars 2018 - 2019 2017 - 2018 |
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment .08 24.23
Depreciation on Investment Property .44 044
Amurtisation on Intanglble Assets 0,02 .06
20,54 2473
13 UTHER EXPENSES
Particulars 2018 - 2019 2017 - 2018 |
Power & Fuel .25 7258
Repairs & Maintenunce
Plint & Machinery 12.70 BHS
Building H89 .64
Others 211 2370 235 1574
Insurance Charges 7.38 T.B4
Rates & Taxes 154 5.23
Kient .16 (16
Payment to Statutory Auditor (Refer Note No. 33.1) 1.79 1.23
Water Lhargr 1.14 192
Thanathon 11.00 14.51
Labour Charges 24.70 2766
Processing Charges 4.80 -
Freight and Forwarding 165 1.15
. [ "5_‘5' I‘iﬂ AHH
Telephone .34 .55
Penalty 0.07 (1000




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

[Bs. in Lakhs]
Legal & Professional 4.37 7.22
Hegistrar & Share Transfer Fee .86 054
Bank Charges {149 127
Miscellancous expenses 757 B523%
Investment Expenses {108 .09
155.59 168 80
Note No. 33.1 ; Payment 1o Statatory Auditors
As Auditors ;
Audit Fees (including Limited Heview) .77 116
Towards G8T/Senvice Tax ® (.27 0.07
204 123
in {ither Capacity
Out of pocket cxpenses .02 0.07
Torwards GSTService Tax * .00 001
0.02 .08
Total Auditors Remuneration 2.06 1.31

* Note: Out of above GST/ Service Tax credit of Hs, 26,7724 (Previous Year Hs 8,128/ has been mken and the sume has not been debited to
Statement of Profit & Loss

34 EARNING PER SHARE

Particulars 2018 - 2019 2017 - 2018 |
{A) Profit attributable to Equity Sharcholders 7450 255.51
() N of Equity Share outstanding during the year, 245,000 2,45,000
() Face Value ol each Equity Share (Hs) 10 1
(1Y) Basic & Diluted carning per Share (Bs.) 30.33 104.29

35 Financial Risk Management
The Company’s activities expose il to credit risk, liquidity risk and price nisk
This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the impact thereof in the financial

stalements.
Hisk Exposure arising from Mcasurement Management
Credit Risk Cash and cash cquivalents, trade|Credit ratings, Review of agingStrict  credit  control and
receivables and fnancial assels.  |analysis, on quarterly basis. monitoring system,
diversification of countérpanics,
on guarterly basis.
Licjuichity Risk Trade  pavables  and  other|Maturty  analysis, cash  flow| Malntaining sufficient cash | cash
financial lisbilities. projections, equivalents  and  marketable
secnty and foous on realisation
of receivables.
Interest Risk Long  Term  Borrowing  atiSensitivity Analysis Interest rate swaps
Vartable Rates
Price Hisk Change in price of raw material | The company sourcing| The company is sble to pass on|
components  from  vendors|substantial price hike if any to
directly, hence it does not hedge|the customers.
ils exposure 1o commodity price
risk.

The Board provides guiding principles for overall risk management, us well as policies covering spevific areas such as credit risk, Hquidity risk,
price risk and foreign exchange risk effecting business operation. The company’s risk management is carricd oul by the management as per
puidelines and policies approved by the Board of Directors

(A} Credit Risk




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes ta the linancial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

[Bs. in Lakhs]
Credit Risk Managenient
The company’s credil risk mainly from trade receivables as these are typically unsecured. This credit risk has always been managed through
credit approvals, establishing credit Bmits and continuous monitoring the creditworthiness of customers o whom eredit is extended in the
normal course of business The Company estimates the expected credit loss based on past data, available information on public domain and
experience. Expected credit losses of financlal assets recelvable are estimated based on historical data of the Company. The company has
provistoning policy for expected credit losses

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 is the carrying value of such irude receivables as shown in note 9
of the financials.

(B) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk represents the inability of the Company to meet its financial obligations within stipulated time. To mitigate this risk, the Company
nuintains sullicient lguidity by way of working capital limits from banks

The table helow provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual
undhiscounted payments;

Particulurs Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

As at 31st March, 2019

Horrowings §70.42 579.42
Trade payables 415 34.1%
Toital 513.55 - G13.5%
Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

As at 31st March, 2018

Borrowings 228,05 228,05
Trade payables T1.96 = T1.96
Total 300.01 - 300.01

(C) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fowre cash flows of a lnancial instrument will fuctuate because of changes in market interest
rutes. In order 1o optimize the Company's position with regard 1o interest income and interest expenses and 10 manage the interest rale risk,
treasury performs u comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of the fixed rate and floating rate
financial instruments in its wtal portfolio:

The exposure of company borrowings o inferest raie changes at the end of reporting period are as follows;

Particulars As at 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018
Variable rate borrowings 349,42 153,05
Fixed rate borrowings 230,00 T304
Total borrowings 579.42 228.05
Sensitivity Analysis
Profitoss is scositive to higherlower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in inlerest rates,
|Fu.rticulnn Basis Points Impact on Profit before Tax

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Increase in Hasis points + 50 175 077
Decrease in Busis points - 50 -1.75 £.77

{1 Price risk

The company s exposed to price risk in basic ingrediants of Company's raw material and is procuring matenals from vendors directly. The

B2 2L




Motes to the financial statements for the year ended

TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
31 March, 2019

[Ms. in Lakhs]
36 Related party disclosures as required under Ind AS 24, “Related Party Disclosures”, are given below:
a) Name of the related party and descripion of relanonship.
[$. No.  [Related Partics Nature of Relationship
fi) Mr. Ramu 5§ Deors Director and CEO (Key Manugertal Personnel)
i1y (r Amphray Laboratories Key managerial person is proprietor
\{ii) G Aamphiray Pharmaceuticals Pv Ll | Relacdve of key managerial person have control
H{iv) Trinchem Laboratories Pyt Lul Relitive of key managerial person have control
lp.-; Trischem Prodicts Gratuity Fund Key munagerial person is irustes
b Dierails of Transactions during the year with related parties.
(8. No.  |Related parties Nature of Transactions during the year 2018-2019 | 2017-2018
i {r Amphray Laboratories Furchase of goods 2200 21595
Sales of goods 1,007 65 3,162.72
E-Fayment of expense & reimbursement paid . (1115
1) i amphiray Pharmacenticals Pvbid | Purchiase ufgxrds 3464 67.57
i} Trinchem Laboraeres P Lid Purchase of goods * 123 83
:;f.i'-'; Tricichem Products Gratuity Fund Contribution paid 0.91 1.03
[iv) Mr: Ramu 5. Deors Loan taken during the year 1,012.00 620,00
Loan repaid during the year B57.00 55100
ﬁ Interest paid 4191 2515
o) Halances atend of the vear with related parpes
(8], No.  |Related parties Nature of Transactions during the year As al 31st As at 31st
March, 2019 |March, 2018
.|__| Mr Ramu § Deora l.oan paynble 23000 75,0
Interest Payable 25 -
(i) G Amphray laboratonies Trade Heceivahle 333.01 -
[t} Tricthem Products Gramity Fund Advange for Gratuity Lu7 .49
37 Employee Benefits
A% per INDUAS 19 "Employee Benefits”, the disclosures of Emplovee henelits as defined in the said Accounting Standards are given below
(1) Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution o Defined Contridution Plan includes Providend Fund. The expenses recognised for the year are as under
Particulars 2018-2019 [ 2017-2018 |
Ermplover's Contributizen to Providend Fund 521 329 |
{ii) Defined Benefit Plan
(2} Goratuity-

The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every employee is entifed 1 the benefic equivalent to 15 days  one month salary last drawn for each completed year of
service depending on the date of joining The same 15 payable on termination of servace, retirement or death, whichever is earlier. The benefit vests afier § years ol

CORDNLONIS SETVICE

i) The lollowing tables set out the assumpticns tken, status of the gratuity plan, the amounts recognised in the Company’s lnancial statements as at 31 March 2019

anid 31 March 2114

23

5l No. | Particulars 2018-2019 | 2017-2018
['l.':juuuun Results as at 41-Mar-14 31-Mar-18

i |Change in present value of obligations
V0 ar beginning of period 732 41
Interest cost (.51 045 |
Current service cost {1.93 L84
Pist service cost - (non vested benelits) - *
Pamt service coal - (vested benefisg) % 2
Henefits paid {143} {66
Contribution by plan participanis - -
Huminess caombinations =
Curtallments *
Senelements % -
Actuarial (Gain) ! Loss on abligation {I-21) a
VOt el of period 712 T

Il _——llulerest Expenscs . ;

m!ﬁh cosl fo8~ _“ﬂii\ | 051 | 045 |



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

glal actuarial (Gain) | Loss n:mﬁnizcd in PO

[Rs. in Lakhs]
111 Fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets st the beginning 607 0.21
Inlerest cost 0.51 048
v Net linbility
PO al beginning of period 7.31 h.4l
| Fair value of the sssets at beginning report 6.07 6.21
Net liahihity 124 020 |
v Net inlerest
Interest expenses 0.51 045
Interest income 051 047
Nel inferest {H0E)
vi Actual return on plan assets
Actual return on plan asscis 032 Az
| Less interest income included above (.51 0,48
heturn on plan assets excluding interest income (L19y {18
¥l Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on obligation
e 1o demopraphic assumption® - -
Dut w finunclal wsumption (h03 (.07}
[ue 1o expenience (.24} 0.35
ﬁ Total actuarial (Gain) | Loss {021y 0.28
* This figure docs not reflect interrelationship between demographic assumption and financial assumption when a limit is applied on the benefit the effec
will be shown s an experience
Vi Fair value of plan assels
pemng lir value of plan assets 6.7 621 |
Adpustment w0 opemng Gur value of plan assets 124 .20
Retrn on plan asseis excluding interes! income (v 18} {0.16)|
Interest income 51 {145
Conribution by employer
Contribution by employee - .
Renefit paid i1.43) {11.66) |
Fair value of plan assels at end 6.21 GUT |
X Past service cost recognised
Past service cost - (non vested benefits) -
Past semvice cost - (vested beneli) -
Average remaining future service ull vesting of the bencfit -
Rectgnised past service cost - non vested benefins +
Reeognised past service cost - vested benelits . [
Unrecognised past service cost - non vested benefits -
ﬂ X Amewnt 1o be recognized in the balance sheet and statement of profit and loss account .
- PV at end of period 7.12 TR
Fair value ol plan assets a1 end of perisd (.21 .06
_l"IiEl_h.'ﬂ status {0915 {1.20)
et Assets o Liahility recognized in the balance sheet {91y {1.26)
Xl Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss account
Current service cost 0,94 LB
Net interest - (LA
|Past service cost - (non vested benefits) 2
| Past service cost - {vested henchis) =
| Curtailments effect =
setiedements chiect = =
bxpenst recognized in the stnement of profit and loss account 094 B0 |
X1l Other comprehensive income (OC1)
| Actuarial (Gain) | Loss recognized for the period {21y 0,28 |
Masel Hmmn elfect - = |
Return on plan assets excluding net inferest 019 0.16 |
Unrecognised scruarial (Gain) / Loss from previous pcrind 2 :
[LIRLFH] i
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes 10 the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March, 2019

. [Rs. in Lakhs]
:FXI:II Movements in the liability recognized in balance sheet
Opening net lablity " 1.24 .20 |
‘ Adjustment 1o opening balance {1.24) rEI'.E'IJJ'
Expenscs us shove 0194 (r 80
| Contribution paid : ;
| Uther comprenehsive income {OC) {0.02) 044
| Closing net labtlity (.92 1,24 |
X1V Schedule 11 of the Companes act 2013
| Current lability (*) 0.81 1.24
Non - current lability 6.21 607
| {*) Mar 14, current Hability bused in Rev Schedule V]
xv Projected service cost 3 1st March 2020 084 0,94 |
XV Assel information Target Total Amount |
| Alliscariion %
Cash and cash equivalents ; s
Giraluity fund - =
Deht Security - Government bond . = |
Erquity Securities - Corporate debt securilies . -
Uther insurance contracts {Trustees of the Company) 100% 621
ﬁ Froperty . -
| Total ftemized asseis 10% 621
i!(‘lr’ll Assumptions as at
| Mortality LALM [ 2006-08) LT
Ingerest / Discownt rate T.60% T 09,
Kate of tncrease m compensalion 4 0% 4,000,
Annual ineresse in healtheare costs . .
Future changes in maximum state healtheare benefis - .
Expeeied average remaining servce 1206 12,56
Renrement e 58 years
Exmploye atlrition rale Upt age 45 2% |
46 and ahove: 1% [
XV Sensitivity analysis DR Dhscount rate ER- Salary Escalation Rate
VO DR + 1% Y DR - 1% FYOER + 1% PV ER - 1'%
O 679.119 750.701 751.292 68128
XIX Expected payvoul |
Year Expected Fxpected Expected Expected Expected Expected ;
Cutgo first Crutgn second | Crutgo thind Chutgo fourth Cutgo fifith Outgo Six (o [
ten vears
g PV payous 304 008 031 011 1.73 1L59
= XX Assets Hability comparisons
Year 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 41-Mar-18 $1-Mar-19 |
PO at endd of pertod - 5.H9 4l 732 712
Flan assets - 5.18 6,21 6,08 f.dl
surplus ¢ (eficit) . {071 .20 (1.24) {091}
Experience adjisstments in plan asscts - {0.15) {1L.15) i) 1) {0193
XXl Narrations
|1) Analysis of defined benefit obligation
The number of members under the scheme have decreased by 10,53%  The total salary decreased by B.11% and total daily salary has increased by 9 60%
dunng the year. The resultant lability at the end of the period over the beginning of the period has decreased by 2.65%.
|2} Expected rate of return basis
since the scheme funds are invested with Trustees of the Company EROA s based on rate of return declared by hind managers.
3) Deseription of the plan assets and reimbursement conditions
Deseription given it XV of this Annexure. The Governement securities can be realised as and when needed Realisation of Corporate bonds would depend,
on their credit rating
i) Salary Escalation Rate
The salary escalation rate has remain unchanged and hence here is no change in Haility resulting in no actuarial gain or loss due w change in salary

, __.--—-—-.,‘H_ I¥scount Rate e
[P discount rate has decreased from 769% 1w 7.60% and henee there is o increase in liability leading o actuarial loss duMmm rate
. * e
2014, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers’ The effect on adoption of Jné__-,‘{li%ﬂn the h::':uﬁuial results is

€S 'ni'.\.\




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes 1o the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March, 2019

[Rs. in Lakhs]
39 Disclosure relating to provisions - The movement in the following provisions is summarised as under
Note Mo, [Provision Related to Opening Additions Utilisation Closing Balance |
i Balance
l Ingentive (o Emplovees 1373 . 8,08 - 5.0%
Total 13,73 - B.08 - 5,45

** Note:
The Company gives long terms service ssward 1o its employee based on the perfod survived by them and performance of the company

0 Balances of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables and Loans and Advances are subject 1o confirmation and consequential adjustment, if any.
i1 Capital Management
(i) Risk Masagement

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes tssued cquity capital and all other equity reserves atiributable o the equity holders. The
primary chpective of the Company capital management is o maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages ity capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the linancial covenants. The
Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio and is measured by net debt divided by Equity. The Company's Debt is defined as long-erm and shor-term
horrowings including current manurities of long term borrowings and total equity (as shown in balance sheet) includes issued capital and all cther reserves

(it} Grearing Ratio
Q The geaning ratio b end of the reporting period was as follows.

| Partieuilars | 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018 |
Biserirwing 579.42 128.05
Luss: Cashand Cash Eguivalens £4.50 91.91
Net Debt 554.52 136.14
ol Equity 87737 81326
Total Equity and Net Debt 1,432.09 93940
Giearing ratio 38.72% 14.49%

42 Sepment Keporting
The Company i engaged primarily in the bisiness of manufacturing and export of pharmaceuticals products, APls and chemicals, All other activities of the company
revolve urssnd the main business and hence there is no reportable primary segment Also the Company does not have any reportable geographicel segment. Henee,
isclsires pursuant i the ndian Accounting Standard 108 "Cperating Segment” are not applicable,

43 Foir Value measurement-

The management assessed that Cash and Cash equivalents, loans, other balances with Ranks, trade receivables, rade payables and other current labilitiesasscis
approsimite theit carrying amounts largely due 1o the short-term matnties of these (nstruments.

44 The previous vear figures have been regrouped reclassified, wherever necessary 1o conform (o the current presentation us per the schedule [0 of Companies Act,

ga per our report of even date attached.
—ur Kanu Dioshi Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 1047406W W 100096

For and on behall of Board of Directors

Grace R, Deora
Drirector {DIN: 003 12080)

Puran Parmar
Chief Financial Officer

Rl Vokharda
Partner
Membership No.: 148916

Mace: Mumba
lated: 2hth May, 2019
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Form No. SH-13
Nomination Form
| Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(1) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014)
T
Trinchem Procducts Limited
4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P, M. Road, Fort, Mumbai 400 001

[We the holder(s) of the securities, particulars of which are given

hereunder, which to make nomination and do hereby nominate the following persons in whom shall vest, all the
rights in respect of such securities in the vent of my/our death.

(1) PARTICUALRS OF THE SECURITITES (in respect of which nomination is being made):

!_N:uura: of securities i Folio No. | No. of securitics | Certificate No. Distinctive No.

| 5 |

. () PARTICUALRS OF NOMINEES-
(i) MName:
(h) Date of Birth:
ic) Father's / Mother's | Spouse’s name:
() Oceupation:
{¢) Nationality:
i1 Address:
(g) E-mail ld. & Telephone No.:
(h) Relationship with the security holder(s):
i3) IN CASE OF NOMINEE 15 A MONIR-
{a) Date al birth:
(b) Date of antaining majority:
{t) Name of guardian:
(d) Address of guardian:
(4) PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE IN CSE MINIR NIMINEE DIES BEFORE ATTAINING AGE OF MAJORITY-
. {a) Name:
by Date of Birth:
(¢) Father's ) Mother's / Spouse’s name:
(cl) Occupation:
(e) Nationality:
i1 Address:
(@) E-mail Id. & Telephone Nao.:
(h) Relationship with the security holder(s):
(i) Relationship with the minor nominee:

Name(s) and Address of Security holder(s) Signature(s)

Signature
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Form No. SH-14
Cancellation or Variation of Nomination
| Pursuant to Sub-Section 3 of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(9) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014]
Te
Triochem Products Limited
1™ Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai 400 001

I/We hereby cancel the nomination(s) made by me/us in favour of

{name(s) and address of the nominee) in respect of the below mentioned securities,
Or
|'We hereby nominate the following person in place of as
nominee in respect of the below mentioned securities in whom shall vest all rights in respect of such securities in
the event of my / our death.
(1) PARTICUALRS OF THE SECURITITES (in respect of which nomination is being made):
0 ! Nature of securities  Folio No, | No. of securities Certificate No. ' Distinctive No.
| I
(2) PARTICUALRS OF NOMINEES-
{a) Name:
{hj Date of Birth:

{r) Father's /Mother's / Spouse’s name:

{el) Occupation
{¢) Nationality:
(f) Address:
(g) E-mail ld. & Telephone No.:
(h) Relationship with the security holder(s):
(3) IN CASE OF NOMINEE 1S A MONIR-
{a) Date of birth:
by Date of artaining majority;
. {c) Name of guardian:
(d) Address of guardian:
(4) PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE IN CSE MINIR NIMINEE DIES BEFORE ATTAINING AGE OF MAJORITY-
{a) Name:
(hy Date of Birth:
{c) Father's /Mother's / Spouse’s name:
(dj Occupation:
() Nationality:
() Address:
() E-mail Id. & Telephone No..
(h) Relationship with the security holder(s):
(i) Relationship with the minor nominee:
Name(s) and Address of Security holder(s) Signature(s)

Signature

B3




Tu,
M/s. Sharex Dynamic (India) Pt Lud
Unit: Triochem Products Limited
C- 101, 247 Park, L. B. $. Marg,
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai: 400083
Phone: + 91 - 22 — 28515644 / 5606, Fax: + 91 - 22 - 28512885
E-mail: support(tesharexindia.com, www, sharexindia.com
Updating of Shareholder Information

| 'We request vou to record the following information against our Folio No.:

General Information:

Folin No.:

. I Name UF_!_i_t? I'_ir_sl named Shareholder;

e

| CIN/Registration No.:*

I (applicable 10 Corporate Shareholder)
Telephone No. with 5TD Code..

| Mohile No.: |

 Limail Id: | ] B

*Self-attested copy of the document(s) enclosed

Bank Details:

| IFSC: (11 dight)
- MICR: (9 digit)
| Bank Account Type:

. Bank Account E\’::: o

. Name of th:.'__ﬁn{‘-_k:
| Bank Branch Address;

#A blank cancelled cheque is enclosed to enable verification of bank details

IWe hereby declare that the particulars given above are correct and complete. If the transaction is delayed because
of incomplete or incorrect information, I/We would not hold the Company/RTA responsible. [/We undertake 1o
inform any subscequent changes in the above particulars as and when the changes take place. 1/We understand that

the above details shall be maintained by you tll [/'We hold the securities under the above mentioned Folio No.

Signature of Sole/ First holder
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Triochem Products Limited

CIN: L24249MH1972PLCO15544
Registered Office: 4% Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P, M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001
Phone: 022 22663150, E-mail: investor@ triochemproducts.com, Website: www. triochemproducts.com
Form No.: MGT - 11

PROXY FORM
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and

Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

: Regd. Folio No. L=DPID |

| No. of Shares held *DPID |

L L |

| /We, bring the member(s) of Shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:

. 1), Name & Address:

Email lcl: Signature or failing him / her

2). Name & Address:

Email 1d: Signature or failing him | her

4y Name & Address:

Email Id: Signature or failing him / her

and whose signature are appended below as my / our proxy to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf
at the 47" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Saturday. the 24" day of August, 2019 at 03.00
0 pom.at 4% Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P, M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001 and at any adjournment thereof in

respect of such resolution as are indicated below:

51 No. of Resolution (as in the Notice annexed)

1 | 2 | 3 g 1 5 | 6
(Tick Mark the SI. No, of Resolution of Which the I’rr;:qr is appointed)

Signed this dayol 2019

Member's FolioDP 1D-Client [D No.:

signature of Sharcholder(s)

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Affix Revenue Stamp
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Triochem Products Limited
CIN: L24249MH1972PLCO15544
Registered Office: 4™ Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001

Phone: (122 22663150, E-mail: investor@iriochemproducts.com, Website: www.triochemproducts.com

BALLOT FORM
| Sr.No. | Particulars Details
1. Name and Registered Address of the
Sole First named Shareholder
" & Name(s) of the Joint Holder(s) (if any)
N 5, | Registered Falio Nou/ - -
| , DP 1D No. and Client 1D No
i_ £ “mml}cr of Share(s) held

. I/ We hereby exercise my [ our vote(s) in respect of the Resolutions set out in the Notice of the Forty Seven
Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to be held on Saturday, 24" August, 2019, by sending my / our

assent or dissent to the said Resolution by placing the tick (Y) mark at the appropriate box below:

= Resolution ' No.of | (FOR) | (AGAINST)

[ Mo Shares 1/ We 1/ We

f assent Lo dissent
the from the

resolution | resolution

E Adoption of Audited Financial Statements, Board's and  Auditors’
Report for the financial year ended 317 March, 2019

2. | Re -appointment of Mr. Ramu 5. Deora, who retires by rotation.
4 .’kppmmmm[ of Ms KANU DOSHI AND ASSOCIATED LLP, Chartered
. Accountant as Statutory Auditors of the Company and fixing their
remuneration.
4. Ratification of Remuneration pavable to cost auditors.
5. wﬁppmmmtm of Mr. Rajesh R. Deora as a Director,
6 Authorization for related party transaction u/s 188 of the Companies

Act, 2013

Place:
[Jate: (Signature of the Shareholder)

Note: Please read the instructions printed below carefully before exercising your vote
Instruction
I The Ballot Form is provided for the benefit of the Members who do not have access o e-voting facility.

2 A Member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through e-voting or by Ballot. If a Member casts




3. For detailed instruction on evoting, please refer to the notes appended to the Notice of the AGM.

4. The Serutinizer wall collate the votes downloaded from the e-voting system and votes received through post to
declare the final result for each of the Resolution forming part of the Notice of the AGM.

Process and manner for Member opting to vote by using the Ballot Form

I Please complete and sign the Ballot Form (no other form or photo copy thereol is permitted) and send it so as
to resch the Scrutinizer appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, Mrs. Rigini Chokshi, Practicing

Company Secretary (Membership No.: FC§14306) at the office of Company's Registrar & Transfer Agent.

The Form should be signed by the Member as per the Specimen signature registered with the
Company/Depasitories. In case of joint holding, the Form should be completed and singed by the first named
Member and in hisher absence, by the next named joint holder. A power of Attorney (POA) holder may vote
on behalf of a member, mentioning the registration number of the POA registered with the Company or
’ enclosing an attested copy of the POA. Exercise of vole by Ballots not permitted through proxy.

3. In case the shares are held by companies, trusts, societies, etc. the duly completed Ballot Form should be
accompanied by a certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution/Authorization.

4. Vortes should be cast in case of cach resolution, either in favor or against by putting the tick (Y) marks in the
column provided in the Ballot.

5. The voting rights of sharcholders shall be in proportion of the share held by them in the paid up equity share
capital of the company as on 17" August, 2019 and as per the Register of Members of the Company.

6. Duly completed Ballot Form should reach the Scrutinizer not later than Friday, August 23, 2019 (05.00 p.m.
[ST). Ballot Form received alter August 23, 2019 will be strictly treated as if the reply form the Members has
not been received

7 A Member may request for a duplicate Ballot Form, if so required. However, duly filled in and signed

9 duplicate Form should reach the Scrutinizer not later than the date and time specified in serial no. 6 above.

8. Unsigned, incomplete, improperly or incorrectly tick marked Ballot Forms will be rejected. A Form will also
be rejected if it is received torn, defaced or mutilated to an extent which makes it difficult for the Serutinizer
to identify cither the Member or as to whether the votes are in favor or against ot if the signature cannol be
vertlied

9. The decision of the Serutinizer on the validity of the Ballot Form and any other related matter shall be final.

1. The Results on above resolutions shall be declared not later than 48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM of
the Company and the resolutions will be deemed 1o be passed on the AGM date subject to receipt of the
reqquisite number of votes in favor of the Resolutions.

11.The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report(s) will be available on the website of the Company

(www triochemproducts.com) and on Service Provider's website (www.cdslindia.com) and communication of




Triochem Products Limited
CIN: L24249MH1972PLCO15544
Registered Office: 4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001
Phone: (22 22663150, E-mail: investor@iriochemproducts.com | Website: www triochemproducts.com
Form No.: MGT - 12
Polling Paper
(Pursuant to Section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 21(1)(c) of the Companices
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

- Name of the Company: Triochem Products Limited
Registered Office: 4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001
| CIN: L24249MH1972PLCO15544

| BALLOT PAPER
. ; Sr. No. Particulars - ' Details o
1. Name of the First named Shareholder (In Block
| Letters) |
2 Postal address

[
5. | Registered Folio No. / *Client ID No. (*applicable to
vestors holding shares in dematerialized form) ‘
|4 | Ci:ms_of Share 3 ) . Equity Shares '
I hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary | Special Resolutions enumerated below by recording my assent or
dissent to the said resofution in the following manner:

N Jtem No. | No. lr.af:ii‘lﬂ.l'tﬁ .l assent to the | | éisscnt from |

I held by me | resolution the resolution |

1. 'E;—puuﬁ of Audited Financial Statements, Board's and |
Auditors' Report for the linancial year ended 31" March, 2019

. 2 Reappointment of Mr. Ramu S. Deora, who retires by
rafation.

5| Appointment of Ms KANU DOSHI AND ASSOCIATED LLP,

Chartered Accountant as Statutory Auditors of the Company

and fixing their remuneration

b Ranfication of Remuneration payable to cost auditors,
| S—

Appointment of Mr. Rajesh R Deora as a Direclor.
Authorization for related party transaction u/s 188 of the
I [ Companies Act, 2013.

Place
[Jate: (Signature of the Shareholder®)
(*as per Company records)

A%




Triochem Products Limited
CIN: L24249MH1972PLCO15544
Registered Office: 4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001
Phone: (022 22665150, E-mail: investor(@triochemproducts.com , Website: www triochemproducts.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

" Name of the :kttcn'ding Member(s):

i #Folio No.:

| DPID No.:

| Client ID No.:

Mo of Shares :

1 hereby record my presence at the 47" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held at 4" Floor,
Sambava Chambers, Sir P.M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001, at 03.00 p.m. on Saturday, the 24™ August, 2019.
Name of the attending Shareholder/Proxy

Signature of the attending

Shareholder Prexy |

Notes:
| 1) A Member [ Proxy holder attending the meeting must bring the Attendance Slip to the meeting and
hand it over at the entrance duly signed.
2) A Member | Proxy holder attending the meeting should bring copy of the Annual Repont for reference
al the meeting.
*Applicable in case of share held in Physical Form

Cut Here

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICUALRS

EVSN User 1D (PAN / Sequence Number)
| (Electronic Voting Sequence Number)

NOTE: Please read the complete instructions given under the Note (The instructions for sharcholders voting
clectronically) to the Notice of Annual General Meeting. The Voting time starts from August 21, 2019 [rom (09.00

am. to ends on August 23, 2019 at 05.00 p.m. The voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting therealter

Ik
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